Cabazon Water District | |
January 16, 2018 FAC Meeting Agenda

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street » P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING
AGENDA

Meeting Location:
Cabazon Water District Office

14618 Broadway Street
Cabazon, California 92230
Meeting Date:
Tuesday, January 16, 2018 - 5:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER,
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,
ROLL CALL
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

1. Discussion: Finance & Audit Committee Report

* Balance Sheet
* Profit and Loss Budget Comparison

2. Finance & Audit Committee District Payables Review and Approval/Signing

PUBLIC COMMENT

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and
reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or
taking immediate action on items during this public comment pericd. To comment on specific agenda items, please
advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes.
Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the speaker will be
hotified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d))

ADJOURNMENT

ADA Compliance lssues
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 8 Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to
participate in a Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at {951) 849-4442. Nofification of at least 48 hours prior to
meeting time will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



Cabazon Water District | |
January 16, 2018 Reguiar Board Meeting Agenda

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street + P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
AGENDA

Meeting Location:
Cabazon Water District Office

14618 Broadway Street
Cabhazon, California 92230
Meeting Date:
January 16, 2018 ~ 6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
REMEMBRANCE OF OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN
ROLL CALL
CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters in this category are considered to be consistent with the Board/District goals, District Policies and
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items. f discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and
will be considered separately.

1. Approval of:
a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and warrants approved by the committee of
December 19, 2017
b. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and warrants of December 19, 2017

2. Warrants — None
3. Awards of Contracts — None

UPDATES
1. Update: San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Update
{by Director Israel)
2. Update: Manager's Operations Report

{(by General Manager Louie)

Business (951} 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



Cabazon Water District
January 16, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Agenda

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the Cabazon Water District that is listed on the agenda under Closed Session; however, any
matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of
Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or taking immediate action
on items during this public comment period. To comment on specific agenda items, please advise the Board
secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes. Individuals may not
give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the speaker will be notified that hefshe
has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d))

CLOSED SESSION

{1) CONFERENGCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - General Manager's Personnel Evaluation
OPEN SESSION

Report to the public of action taken by the Board, if any.

OLD BUSINESS
1. Discussion: Sustainable Ground Water Update
(by General Manager Louie}
2. Discussion/Action: Review and adoption of the Cabazon Water Capacity Charge Model and
Fees relating to new services
{by Greg Henry, NBS)
NEW BUSINESS
1. Discussion/Action: Annual Audit Presentation for Fiscal Year 2016-2017
{by Chris Brown, Fedak and Brown)
2. Discussion/Action: Brown Act AB 1234 and Sexual Harassment Training to be held annually, or
as required by law
(by Lynk and Israel)
3. Discussion/Action: Transfer of funds from District's General Account to the District’s LAIF
(“Savings”) Account.
PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to
three (3) minutes. Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the
speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec.
53232.3(d))

Business (951) 849-4442 » FAX (951) 849-2519

2



Cabazon Water District
January 16, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Agenda

GENERAL MANAGER/BOARD COMMENTS

1. Future Agenda ltems
The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an

individual(s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary to
place the matter on a future Board meeting.

» Suggested agenda items from the Public.
» Suggested agenda items from Management.
¢ Suggested agenda items from Board Members.

2. Management Comments
Staff members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the Board
and public, Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot
be discussed. (3 minutes)

3. Board Member Comments

Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the
Board and public. (3 minutes)

MISCELLANEQUS

1, Future Board ltems/Next Board Meeting Date(s)

a. Finance & Audit Workshop - Tuesday - February 20, 2018, 5:00 pm

b. Regular Board Meeting — Tuesday - February 20, 2018, 6:00 pm

c. Personnel Committee — None

d. San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance — Alliance Meeting — January 24, 2017

ADJOURNMENT

ADA Compliance Issues

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilifies Act & Governmeant Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance js needed to participate in a
Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board af (351) 849-4442. Nofification of at teast 48 hours prior to meefing time will assist staff
in assuring thaf reasonable arrangements can be made fo provide access.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

3



Cabazon Water District | |
Dec. 19, 2017 FAC Meeting Minutes

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street » P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES

Meeting Location:
Cahazon Water District Office

14618 Broadway Street
Cabazon, California 92230
Meeting Date:
Tuesday, December 19, 2017 - 5:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER,
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,
ROLL CALL @ 5:08 pm

Director Israel - Present

Calvin Louie (General Manager) - Absent
Elizabeth Lemus, Board Secretary - Present
Cindy Byerrum, Financial Consulitant - Absent

*Note: This meeting was recorded by the District -

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

1. Discussion: Finance & Audit Committee Report

e Balance Sheet

e The District's combined cash and LAIF balance is about $582,200. The District's total liabilities are
approximately $1.17 million.

»  Profit and Loss Budget Comparison

e Line 2 Base Rate: This is the flat, fixed monthly charge to all residents for water service. YTD is at 35% and
should catch up to expected budget after the rate increase takes effect in January 2018,

Business (951) 849-4442 + FAX (951) 849-2519



Cabazon Water District
Dec. 19, 2017 FAC Meeting Minutes

» Line 3 Commodity Sales: This is the variable income from charges linked to the consumption of water, YTD
is at 64% due to increased water usage during the Summer months.

« Line 4 DPHO Contract: This is the amount of the flat and variable charge to DPHO, which is segregated
until their contract expires.

¢ line 6 Fire Flow Income: YTD is over budget due to more fees for fire flow services received than were
anticipated.

« Line 13 Basic Facilities Fee: YTD is at 70% due to a new 5/8” service on Main St. and an upgrade to 3/4"
meter.

o Line 100 Grant & Loan Processing Fee: YTD is at 83% due to water loan grant administration fee for the
period covering October 1, 2017 to September 30, 2018.

As of November 30 the fiscal year-to-date net income is $32,219.
2. Finance & Audit Committee District Payables Review and Approval/Signing

PUBLIC COMMENT

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and
reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or
taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on specific agenda items, please
advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes.
Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the speaker will be
notified that he/she has one (1} minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d))

ADJOURNMENT
Motion to adjourn at 17:14 hr. made by Director Israel.
Director Israel - Aye

Meeting adjourned at 17:14 hr. on December 19, 2017

Robert Lynk, Board Chair Elizabeth Lemus, Secretary
Board of Directors Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District Cabazon Water District

ADA Compliance Issues
in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance Is needed to
participate in a Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to
meeting time will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting.

Business (951) 849-4442 + FAX (951) 849-2519

2



Cabazon Water District | 1
December 19, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street « P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
MINUTES

Meeting Location:
Cabazon Water District Office

14618 Broadway Street
Cahazon, California 92230
Meeting Date:
December 19, 2017 - 6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE QOF ALLEGIANCE

REMEMBRANCE OF OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN
ROLL CALL @ 6:07 pm

Director Martin Sanderson - Present
Director Maxine Israel - Present

Director Sarah Wargo — Present at 18:55 hr.
Director Alan Davis - Present

Director Robert Lynk - Present

Calvin Louie, General Manager - Present

Elizabeth Lemus, Board Secretary - Present

Cindy Byerrum, Financial Consultant - Absent

Steve Anderson, Best Best & Krieger Law Firm - Absent
Joseph Ortiz, Best Best & Krieger Law Firm - Present

Note: This meeting was recorded by the District «

CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters in this category are considered to be consistent with the Board/District goals, District Palicies and
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items. If discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and
will be considered separately.

1. Approval of:

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



Cabazon Water District | 2
Pecember 19, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and warrants approved by the committes of
November 17, 2017
h. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and warrants of November 17, 2017

Motion to approve consent calendar item{s) {a.) Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and warrants
approved by the committee of November 17, 2017 {b.} Regular Board Meeting Minutes and warrants of November
17, 2017 made by Director Davis and 2"¢ by Director Israel

Director Sanderson - Abstain
Director Israel - Aye

Director Wargo - Absent
Director Davis - Aye

Director Lynk - Aye

2. Warrants - None
3. Awards of Contracts — None

*Note: Since Director Wargo was running [ate, the Board decided to move on to the updates, old, and new
business, in an attempt to allow time for Director Wargo to appear and participate in the Closed Session and
Board Reorganization items. The following is in the order of which was discussed:

UPDATES
1. Update: San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Update
(by Director Israel)
2. Update: Manager's Operations Report
(by General Manager Louie)
OLD BUSINESS
1. Discussion: Sustainable Ground Water Update
(by General Manager Louie & Steve Anderson)
2. Discussion/Action: Customer Concern: Travis Lacy ~ Misc. charges

Although Mr. Lacy was previously invited to attend this meeting, he was
not present. :

Motion to deny Mr. Lacy’s request for a discount/adjustment regarding misc. charges due to the customer
removing his water meter from the meter box hefore District staff arrived made by Director israel and 27 by
Director Sanderson.

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Israel - Aye
Director Wargo - Absent
Director Davis « Aye
Director Lynk - Aye

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



Cabazon Water District | 3
December 19, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

NEW BUSINESS

1. Discussion/Action: Senate Bill 415: Potential adoption of an even-year only election (elections
to no longer be held during odd-years).

l.egal provided the opinion that because the District’'s voter turnout was
not significantly impacted/different during odd-year voting, the District
could continue its current election year practices (elections during odd
years)

The consensus of the Board (Israel, Sanderson, Davis, and Lynk) was to
leave the current election process as is for the time being, in light of Legals
opinion. Director Wargo was absent during this discussion.

2. DiscussionfAction: RESOLUTION 05-2017: Revision of Authorized Signer for the District Chase
Bank Accounts. Request to add Director Martin Sanderson as an
authorized signer, and to remove former Director Teresa Bui as a signer on
District Accounts.

Motion to approve RESOLUTION 05-2017: Revision of Authorized Signer for the District Chase Bank
Accounts; to add Director Martin Sanderson as an authorized signer, and to remove former Director Teresa
Bui as a signer on District Accounts made by Director Israel and 2t by Director Davis.

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director israel - Aye
Director Wargo - Absent
Director Davis - Aye
Director Lynk - Aye

*Note: the Board took a short recess at 18:35 hr., and resumed the meeting at 18:55 hr. By that time, Director
Wargo was present.

REORGANIZATION

Background information: In the past, the Cabazon Water District's Board of Directors has undergone
reorganization after each election. (by General Manager Louie)

1. Discussion/Nomination/Vote: Board President
(Board President to Chair the Meeting)

Motion to elect Director Lynk as the Board President. Made by Director Wargo and Director Israel.

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Israel - Aye
Director Wargo - Aye
Director Davis - Aye
Director Lynk - Aye

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



Cabazon Water District
December 19, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

2. Discussion/Nomination/Vote: Board Vice President
Motion to elect Director Davis as the Board Vice President. Made by Director Israel and Director Wargo.

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Israel - Aye
Director Wargo - Aye
Director Davis - Aye
Director Lynk - Aye

3. Discussion/Nomination/Vote: Ad hoc Committees

« Finance and Audit Committee (2 Directors)
{former member Bui, current member Israel)

Regularly meets one hour before regular board
meetings, third Tuesday of each month, in addition to
two fo three fimes to review and sign payables as
needed.

Director Lynk, as the Board Chair, appointed Directors Israel and Director Wargo to be the FAC members. They both
accepted the position. No objections were voiced by Board or Public.

¢ Personnel Commitfee (2 Directors)
Meets when necessary.

Director Lynk, as the Board Chair, appointed Directors Wargo and himself to be the Personnel Committee members.
No objections were voiced by Board or Public.

» San Gorgonio Pass Water Task Force
(1 Director) (current member Director Israef)

Meets once a month and an additional meeting if
assigned to a sub-committee. Meetings held at the
City of Banning, Council Chamber and City Hall.

Director Lynk, as the Board Chair, appointed Directors Israel the San Gorgonio Pass Water Task Force Position. She
accepted the position. No objections were voiced by Board or Public,

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited
by faw from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to
three (3) minutes. Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson, After two (2) minutes, the

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951} 849-2519

4



Cabazon Water District
December 19, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS {Gov. Code Sec.
53232.3(d)}

CLOSED SESSION {Entered into at 19:00 hr.)

0] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - General Manager's Personnel Evaluation

OPEN SESSION (at 20:45 hr.)

Report to the public of action taken by the Board, if any.
No action taken, and nothing to report at this time.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting, The Board of Directors is prohibited
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to
three (3) minutes. Individuals may not give their fime away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the
speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS {Gov. Code Sec.
53232.3(d))

GENERAL MANAGER/BOARD COMMENTS

1. Future Agenda ltems
The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an
individual{s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary to
place the matter on a future Board meeting.

s Suggested agenda items from the Public.
Suggested agenda items from Management.
+ Suggested agenda items from Board Members,

Director Lynk, Davis, and Israel: Agenda item to hold annual Brown Act and Sexual
Harassment training.

2. Management Comments
Staff members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the Board
and public. Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot
be discussed. (3 minutes)

3. Board Member Comments

Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the
Board and public. (3 minutes}

Business {951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

5



Cabazon Water District
December 19, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

MISCELLANEQUS

1. Future Board Items/Next Board Meeting Date(s)
a. Finance & Audit Workshop - Tuesday - January 16, 2018, 5:00 pm
b. Regular Board Meeting - Tuesday ~ January 16, 2018, 6:00 pm
¢. Personnel Committee —~ None
d. San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance - Alliance Meeting — January 24, 2018
ADJOURNMENT
Motion o adjourn at 19:54 hr, made by Director Lynk.

Note: No roll call vote was made, but there were no objections voiced by either Board or Public to adjourn
the meeting.

Meeting adjourned at 19:54 hr. on Tuesday, December 19, 2017

Robert Lynk, Board Chair Elizabeth Lemus, Secretary
Board of Directors Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District Cabazon Water District

ADA Compliance Issuss

In compliance with the Americans with Disabifities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to participate in &
Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board af (951) 849-4442. Nofificafion of at least 48 hours prior to meeting fime will assist staff
in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made fo provide access.

Business (951) 849-4442 + FAX (951) 849-2519

6



Cabazon Water District
Profit & Loss

December 2017
YTD
Dec-17 YTD Budget 50%
1 Operating Income
2 Base Rate - Water Bills S 56,927 S 339,749 S 801,200 42%
3 Commodity Sales 21,379 183,293 252,600 73%
4 DHPO Contract 17,039 114,335 193,800 59%
5 Fire Sales - Water Bills 196 1,177 2,200 54%
b Fire Flow income - 300 150 200%
7 Meter Install and Removal - - 80 0%
3 Penalty Fees - Water Bills 3,586 25,775 34,600 74%
9 Lien Reinstatement Fees - - 1,000 0%
10 New Account Fees - Water Bills 180 1,050 1,500 70%
i1 incident Fee - Water Bills - 250 140 179%
12 Returned Check Fees 350 330 500 66%
13 Basic Facilities Fee 19,660 42,980 33,200 129%
14 Stand By Fees - Tax Revenue - 14,189 113,600 12%
15 Total Operating Income: 119,058 723,428 1,434,570 50%
16 Non-Operating Income
17 Property Taxes 3,736 5,051 60,900 8%
18 Cell Tower Lease Income 2,006 10,031 23,100 43%
19 Misc. Non-Operating Income 378 1,374 - 0%
20 Interest Income 444 4,112 7,400 56%
21 Total Non-Operating Income 2,829 15,517 30,500 51%
22 Total Income 125,623 743,996 1,525,970 49%
23  Expense
24 Payroll
26 Directors Fees 900 6,800 20,000 34%
25 Management & Cust. Service:
27 Customer Accounts 5,195 24,978 43,800 57%
28 Business Admin Manager 4,154 30,893 54,200 57%
29 Office Assistant - 2,465 8,100 30%
30 General Manager 6,468 45,819 84,900 54%
31 Total Mgmt. & Cust. Service: 15,817 104,156 191,000 55%
32 Field Workers 11,078 52,677 85,000 62%
33 Total Payroll 26,895 156,833 276,000 57%
34 Employee Benefits Expense
35 Workers Comp. - 4,143 14,100 29%
35 Employee Health Care 7,396 36,959 62,300 59%
36 Pension 5,638 29,909 54,200 55%
37 Total Employee Benefits Expense 13,034 71,011 130,600 54%
38 Payroll Taxes 2,077 13,257 27,200 49%

39 Total Payroll - All Expenses: 42,906 247,901 453,800 55%



41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79

Cabazon Water District
Profit & Loss

December 2017
YTD
Dec-17 YTD Budget 50%
40 Operational Expenses
Facilities, Wells, T&D
Lab Fees 655 2,450 8,000 31%
Site Landscaping & Maint 45 270 700 39%
Meters - 2,093 5,000 42%
Generator Service Contractor - 367 2,400 15%
Utilities - Wells 11,580 62,870 117,900 53%
SCADA - 131 4,900 3%
Line R&M Contractor - - 12,500 0%
Line R&M Materials 2,211 10,640 60,000 18%
Well Maintenance 9,862 24,179 36,000 67%
Security 940 8,567 24,410 35%
Engineering Services 11,324 59,086 80,900 73%
Chlorinators - 61 4,180 1%
Facilities, Wells, T&D - Other - 343 10,000 3%
Total Facilities, Wells, T&D 36,617 171,058 366,890 47%
Utilities - Office
Electricity 1,107 7,620 15,100 50%
Gas 46 187 710 26%
Telephone 796 4,693 10,500 45%
Trash Pickup & Office Cleaning 358 2,147 4,400 49%
Total Utilities - Office 2,306 14,647 30,710 48%
Office Expenses
Water Billing System 177 1,064 2,500 43%
Supplies & Equipment 69 1,029 9,700 11%
Copier and Supplies 999 2,633 8,100 33%
Dues & Subscriptions 88 88 1,700 5%
Postage 741 3,530 12,900 27%
Printing & Publications - 240 6,100 1%
Lteases & Rents 82 165 300 55%
Computer Services 2,650 15,933 36,800 43%
Office Radio - - 500 0%
Office Storage 500 3,000 6,100 49%
Air Conditioning Servicing 379 2,274 4,500 51%
Fire Alarm System Servicing - 288 600 48%
Office Expenses - Other 242 836 1,300 64%
Total Office Expenses 5,928 31,078 91,100 34%
Support Services
Temporary Labor 680 5,690 10,000 57%
Financial Audit 500 7,355 22,100 33%
Accounting 1,120 12,364 30,000 41%

80



81
82
83
84
85
&6
87
38
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98

Cabazon Water District

Legal Services
Bank Service Charges
Payroll Service
General Liability Insurance
Total Support Services
Training/Travel
Other Fees/SWRCB
Service Tools & Equipment
Shop Supplies and Small Tools
Vehicle Fuel
Employee Uniforms
Safety
Tractor Expenses
Equipment Rental
Service Trucks - R&M
Water Ops Phone & Internet
Communications
Total Service Tools & Equipment

99 Non-Operating Expenses

100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108

Grant & Loan Processing Fee
DWR Interest on Loans
DHPO Interest Expense
Bad Debt Expense
Miscellaneous
Website Support
DHPO Capacity Fees
Total Non-Operating Expenses
Depreciaticn Expense

109 Total Expense

110 Net Income (Loss)

Profit & Loss

December 2017

YTD

Dec-17 YTD Budget 50%
1,756 26,791 115,100 23%
166 420 1,500 28%
295 1,860 5,100 36%
943 5,658 21,900 26%
5,460 60,137 205,700 29%
785 5,689 7,000 81%
2,285 4,790 19,600 24%
162 567 6,100 9%
1,220 6,635 12,200 54%
- 334 1,500 22%
- - 500 0%
- 456 5,500 8%
- 159 1,000 16%
1,359 6,223 14,400 43%
85 426 3,600 12%
- - 3,300 0%
2,826 14,800 48,100 31%
- 1,325 1,600 83%
- 5,841 11,236 52%
- 6,120 10,802 57%
- - 1,200 0%
- 1,321 5,000 26%
110 960 1,300 74%
3,500 12,250 - 0%
3,610 27,818 31,138 89%
22,192 133,150 266,300 50%
124,913 711,068 1,520,338 47%
708 32,928 5,632 585%




LU T U < IV B L I " I )

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43

ASSETS

Cabazon Water District

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2017

Current Assets
Checking/Savings
11020 - General Bank Account-Chase
11030 - Payroll Bank Account-Chase
11040 - Trust Account- Chase - Cus Dep
11050 - Local Petty Cash
Total Checking/Savings

12000
13010
13020

+ Accounts Receivable
- LAIF
- Bank of NY Trustee Accounts

13040 - Prepaid Expenses
13060 - Inventory Total
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Fixed Assets

14200

+ Canstruction in Process

14204 - CIP Cabazon Outlets Expansion

14209 - CIP Super Map

14210 - CIP 50100 Main St. Property
Total 14200 - Construction in Process

14310

14400

- Tools and Equipment
14320 -
14330 -
14340 -
14350 -
14360 -
14370 -
14380 -
- Land
14500 -

Source of Supply

Transmission & Distribution
Buildings & Structures

Water Treatment

Office Furniture and Equipment
Intangible Plant

Vehicles

Accumulated Depreciation

Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Other Current Liabilities

21250 - Developer Deposits

21251 - Dollar General
Total 21250 - Developer Deposits
21300 - Customer Deposits

21330 - Customer Deposits - Co 1

Dec 31,17

223,498
49,270
9,897
100

282,765
194,709
358,089
56,967
7,115
80,438

697,318

997,554

9,692
9,455
69,701

88,849
123,319
1,532,687
10,173,270
12,281
8,800
72,691
11,032
106,309
689,548
(5,162,807)

7,655,979

8,653,533

1,388

12,265

12,265

4,600

Page 4 of 6



44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
36
57
58
69
60
61

Cabazon Water District

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2017

21340 - Customer Deposits - Co 2
Total 21300 - Customer Deposits

21420 -
21440 -
21450 -
21460 -
21470 -
- Accrued Interest

21480

Accrued Vacation Pay
DWR-HS Payable - Current
Current Portion Zion's Bank Ln
Accrued Payroll

Accrued Payroll Taxes

Total Other Current Liahilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
22000 - DWR-H Loan Payable (Payoff '26)
22100 - Zion's Bank Long Term (2023)
22200 - RCEDA Loan Payable

Total Long Term Liabilities

Net Income
Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Pec 31, 17

4,834

9,434
10,270
18,809
76,943

6,267

456

5,980

142,624

144,012

356,925
376,144
300,000

1,033,069

32,928

7,476,452

8,653,533

Page 5 of 5



Cabazon Wate; tri

cial. *‘&éport

30, 2017 and 2016

Annual Finan

For the Fiscal Years En

a




Cabazon Water District
Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Cabazon Water District
Board of Directors as of June 3 2017

Current
Name Title

Robert Lynk

Alan Davis

Term
12/15-12/17
12/15-12/19
12/15-12/19
Appointed 04/16-12/17

Elected 12/13-12/17

Maxine Israel
Sarah Wargo

Teresa Bui

Cabazon Water District
Calvin Louie, General Manager
14618 Broadway Street
P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230
(951) 849-4442



Cabazon Water Distri

Annual Financi_gﬁliliepg_rt

For the Fiscal Years Ended June;;_a , 2017 and 2016



Cabazon Water District
Annunal Financial Report
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Table of Contents

Table of Contents

Introductory Section

Letter of Transmittal

Financial Section
Independent Auditor’s Report
Management®s Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:
Statements of Net Position
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Posmon
Statements of Cash Flows .

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Report on Compliance and Internal Controls

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance on_ _ ‘
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Orhet Matte Based on
The Audits of Financial Statements Perfmmed m Accordance with
Govermment Auditing Standeay d:, s

e

Page No,

1-3

4-5
6-10

11
12
13-14
15-31

32-33



Introductory Sect on







December 19, 2017

Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District

Introduction

It is our pleasure to submit the Annual Financial Report for the Cabazon: Water District for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, following guidelines set forth'by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board. District staff prepared this financial report. The:District is ultimately responsible for both the
accuracy of the data and the completeness and the fairness of presétitation, including all disclosures in this
financial report. We believe that the data presented is 2 ¢ in all material respects. This report is
designed in a manner that we believe necessary tg enhance your understanding of the District’s financial
position and activities. ' '

vy-and-(2) Financial. The Introductory section
ion and current District activities, and reports on a
ection includes the Independent Auditor’s Report,
t’s basic financial statements, and the District’s

This report is organized into two sections: (1) Inttoduc
offers general information about the Distiiet?
summary of significant financial resulfs. The
Management's Discussion and Analysis of
audited basic financial statements witl

rinciples (GAAP) require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview.:and analysis. to decompany the financial statements in the form of the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section. This lettet of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and. should be read in conjunction with it. The District’s MD&A can be found
immediately after the Independent Auditot’s Report.

Generally Accepted Acqo@iﬁfﬁé

District Structure and Leadel'éli'ip

The Cabazon Water District is an independent special district, which operates under the authority of
Division 12 of the California Water Code. The District was formed in 1954 and is governed by a five-
member Board of Directors, elected at-large from within the District’s service area. The General
Manager administers the day-to-day operations of the District in accordance with policies and procedures
established by the Board of Directors. The District employs one (1) regular employee and five (5) part-
time employees organized into two departments, The District’s Board of Directors meets each month.
Meetings are publicly noticed and citizens are encouraged to attend,

The District provides water service to approximately 1,000 customers within its 7,040 acre service area,
tocated in the eastern portion of Riverside County. The District encompasses the unincorporated town of
Cabazon and some of the unincorporated areas of Riverside County, California.



District Services

Residential customers are approximately 97% of the District’s customer base and consume approximately
90% of the water produced annually by the District. The District currently has a total of four groundwater
wells with a maximum production capacity of 3,160 gallons per minute.

Economic Condition and Outlook

The District office is located in the unincorporated town of Cabazon in Riverside County. Regional
growth has been slow to recover from the continuing effects of the economic downturn and the
dissolution of Redevelopment Agencies throughout the State.

Internal Control Structure

District management is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the internal control structure
that ensures the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse, The internal control
structure also ensures adequate accousting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles: The District’s internal control
structure is designed to plovide reasonable assurance that these objéétives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control ShOlﬂd not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits require estnna’fes and judgments by management.

Budgetary Control

The District Board of Directors annually adopts an operatmg and capital budget prior to the new fiscal
year. The budget authorizes and provides the ba31s for reporting and control of financial operations and
accountability for the District’s enterprise oper s and eapital projects, The budget and reporting
treatment applied to the District is consistent With-the. accrual basis of accounting and the financial
statement basis. .

Investment Policy

The Board of Directors has adopted an 111vesfmem policy that conforms to state law, District ordinance
and resolutions, prudent money management, and: ‘the “prudent person” standards. The objective of the
Investment Policy is safety, liquidity and ield. District funds are invested in the State Treasurer’s Local
Agency Investment Fundd and 1115t1tut10na] savmgs and checking accounts,

Water Rates and Dist

District policy direction eﬁ"smes that all revenues from user charges and surcharges generated from
District customers must support all District operations including capital project funding. Accardingly,
water rates are reviewed on an annual basis. Water rates are user charges imposed on customers for
services and are the primary component of the District’s revenue. Water rates are composed of a
commodity (usage) charge and a fixed meter standby charge.

Audit and Financial Reporting

State Law and debt covenants require the District to obtain an annual audit of its financial statements by
an independent certified public accountant. The accounting firm of Fedak & Brown LLP has conducted
the audit of the District’s financial statements, Their unmodified Independent Auditor’s Report appears
in the Financial Section,



Other References

More information is contained in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements found in the Financial Section of the report.

Acknowledgements

Preparation of this report was accomplished by the combined efforts of District staff. We appreciate the
dedicated efforts and professionalism that these staff members contribute to the District. We would also
like to thank the members of the Board of Directors for their continued support in planning and
implementation of the Cabazon Water District’s fiscal policies.

Respectfully submitted,

Calvin Louie
General Manager




< Page Intentionally Left Blank >




Financial






Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District
Cabazon, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Cabazon Water District (District) as of and
for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed inithe table of contents.

Muanagement’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair plqseﬁ'fation' of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in‘tite United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal ontiol relevant’ tb the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free front: niisstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on > 'a'nciai"' statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with-auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable: to financial 2 dits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit
Requirements for California Special Districts: Thoge: standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance aboiil “whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves perforiming pr ocedu‘res to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements: The pmcedmes selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of matel ial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments fhe auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to des:gn audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ali material respects, the
respective financial position of the Cabazon Water District, as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of America.



Independent Auditor’s Report, continued
Other Matters
Reguired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information on pages 6 through 10 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Prior Period Restatement

As part of our audit of the June 30, 2017, financial s‘[atements we audlte the adjustments described in
note 7. An adjustment for capital assets and depreciation éxpense was applied o restate the June 30, 2016
and 20135, financial statements.

Other Information

ming_an opmion on the financial statements that
ements. The introductory section on pages |
ralysis and are not a required part of the basic

Qur audits were conducted for the purpose o
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial
through 3, are presented for purposes of-additiona
financial statements.

Other Reporting Required by Go ':g Standards

Standm dS we have also issued our report dated December 19,
2017, on our consicieration'; { the District’s.internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certaiit-provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compiiance dnd the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on ompliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Govermment Aiditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance. This report can be found on pages 32 and 33.

In accordance with Government 4_1udfﬁn

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
December 19, 2017



Cabazon Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 39, 2017 and 2016

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance
of the Cabazon Water District (District) provide an introduction to the financial statements of the District
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with the transmittal letter in the Introductory section and with the basic
financial statements and refated notes, which follow this section,

Financial Highlights

s In fiscal year 2017, the District’s net position decreased 1.86% or $141,047 to $7,443,523. In
fiscal year 2016, the District’s net position decreased 1.93% or $149,311 to $7,584,570. See note
8 for further discussion.

¢ In fiscal year 2017, the District’s operating revenues increased 5.87% or $66,481, due primarily
to increases of $44,048 in water consumption sales and $25,870 in facility fees. In fiscal year
2016, the District’s operating revenues decreased 6.13% or $73,958 due primarily to a decrease
of $79,949 in water consumption sales.

2

In ﬁscal yeal 2017, the Disniet’s opelating expenses incréas .01% or $71,218, due primarily

private sector companies.

The Statements of Net Position
outflows of resources, the obligation
provides the basis for compuiing

rict’s investments in resources (assets), deferred
editors ( iabilities), and deferred inflows of resources. Tt also

District has successfully recovered:all of its costs through its rates and other charges. These statements
can also be used to evaluate pro 1_‘_ablllty and credit worthiness. The final required financial statements are
the Statements of Cash Flows, which provide information about the District’s cash receipts and cash
payments during the reporting period. The Statements of Cash Flows report cash receipts, cash payments,
and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, non-capital financing, and capital and related
financing activities, as well as providing answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what
was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period.

Financial Analysis of the District

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or
waorse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information about the District in a way that
helps answer this question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred
inflows using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private
sector companies, All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of
when the cash is received or paid.



Cabazon Water District
Managenent’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Iinded June 30, 2017 and 2016

Financial Analysis of the District, continued

These two statements report the District’s net position and changes in them. One can think of the
District’s net position (the difference between assets and deferred outflows, and liabikities and deferred
inflows), as one way to measure the District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases
or decreases in the District’s net position is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic
conditions, population growth, zoning and new or changed government legislation, such as changes in
Federal and State water quality standards.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 15
through 31.

Statements of Net Position

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a usefu in or of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the District, assets of the District: exceeded I bilities by $7,443,523 and
$7,584,570 as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. k9

By far the largest portion of the District’s net assets (88:7% an___” 88.4% as of June 30, 2017 and 2016

respectively) reflects the District’s investment in capltal asset  (net of accumulated depreciation) less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is; . The District uses these capital assets to
provide services to customers within the Disl 7
available for future spending.

At the end of fiscal years 2017 and 201
position of $781,505 and $819,748, -S¢

As Restated
2017 2016 Change
Assets:
Current assets 960,600 1,001,425 (40,825)
Capital assets, net 7,788,246 7,999,364 (211,118)
Total assets 8,748,846 9,000,789 {251,943)
Liabilities:
Current Habilities 233,783 230,423 3,360
Non-current liabilities 1,071,540 1,185,796 {114,256)
Total liabilities 1,305,323 1,416,219 (110,896)
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 6,602,450 6,702,245 (99,795)
Restricted for debt service 59,568 62,577 (3,009
Unrestricted 781,505 819,748 (38,243)
Total net position $ 7,443,523 7.584,570 (141,047




Cabazon Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

As Restated

2617 2016 Change
Revenues:
Operating revenues 3 1,199,699 1,133,218 66,481
Non-operating reventes 101,251 89,421 11,830
Total revenues 1,300,950 1,222,639 78,311
Expenses:
Operating expenses 1,087,732 1,016,514 71,218
Depreciation 328,920 327,617 1,303
Non-operating expenses 25,345 27,819 (2,474)
Total expenses 1,441,997 1 371,950 70,047

Change in net position (141,047), (149,311) 8,264

Net position, beginning b
of year (note 7) 7,733,881 (149,311)

7,584,570 (141,047)

Net position, end of year

In fiscal year 2017, the District’s
2016, the District’s net posmon
discussion.

In fiscal year 2017, the
increases of $44,048 in g
District’s operating revenu
consumption sales.

In fiscal year 2017, the District’s operating expenses increased 7.01% or $71,218, due primarily to an
increase of $125,270 in general and administrative expenses; which was offset by a decrease of $66,972
in transmission and distribution. In 2016, the District’s operating expenses decreased [2.46% or
$144.658, due primarily to a decrease of $195,403 in transmission and distribution; which was offset by
an increase of $47,169 in general and administrative expenses.



Cabazon Water District
Muanagement’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Capital Asset Administration

At the end of fiscal years 2017 and 2016, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to
$7,788,246 and $7,999,364 (net of accurnulated depreciation), respectively. This investment in capital
assets includes land, transmission and distribution systems, wells, tanks, reservoirs, pumps, buildings and
structures, equipment, vehicles and construction-in-process, etc. Major capital assets additions during the
years include improvements to the transmission and distribution system and source of supply, and

purchase of vehicles.

Changes in capital assets for 2017 were as follows:

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2016 Transfers Transfers 2017
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets $ 712,335 66.06 - 778,397
Depreciable assets 1§,987,765 i - 12,039,505
Accumulated depreciation {4,700,736) - (5,029,656)
Total capital assets, net $ 7,999,364 - 7,788,246
Changes in capital assets for 2016 were as follows:
Transfers/ Balance
Deletions 2016
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets 13,094 (79,785) 712,335
Depreciable assets 190,358 (23,510 1£,987,765
Accumulated depreciation {327,617) 23,510 {4,700,736)
Total capital assets, net (124,165) {79,785) 7,999,364
Debt Administration.. :
Changes in long-term de as follows:
Balance Balance
2016 Additions Payments 207
Long-term debt:
Loans payable $ 1,297,119 - (111,323) 1,185,796
Total loans payable $ 1,297,119 - {111,323) 1,185,796
Changes in long-term debt in 2016 were as follows:
Balance Balance
2015 Additions Payments 2016
Long-term debt:
Loans payable 5 1,405,507 - (108,388) 1,207,119
Total loans payable $ 1,405,507 - {108,388) 1,297,119




Cabazon Water District
Muanagement’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position

Management is unaware of any conditions which could have a significant impact on the District’s current
financial position, net position or operating results in terms of past, present and future,

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s funding sources, customers, stakeholders and
other interested parties with an overview of the District’s financial operations and financial condition.
Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request
additional financial information, please contact the District’s General Manager at 14618 Broadway Street,
P.O. Box 297, Cabazon, California 92230.




Basic Financial Statements




Cabazon Water District
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2017 and 2016

As Restated

2017 2016
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 583,024 652,260
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted (note 2) 59,568 62,577
Accrued interest receivable 812 812
Accounts receivable — water sales, net (note 3) 201,986 175,058
Property taxes and assessments receivable 14,870 13,205
Materials and supplies inventory 80,438 87,158
Prepaid and other assets 19,902 10,355
Total current assets 960,600 1,001,425
Non-current assets:
Capital assets — non-depreciable assets (note 4) 712,335
Capital assets — depreciable assets, net (note 4) 7,287,029
Total non-current assets 7,999,364
Total assets 9,000,789
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and acerued expenses: 66,385 76,693
Accrued wages and related payables 6,723 5,186
Customer advances and deposit 30,169 {2,168
Accrued interest payable on 5,980 6,708
Long-term liabilities — dug
Compensated absences 10,270 18,345
Loans payable 114,256 111,323
233,783 230,423
1ore than one year:
Loans payable (no 1,071,540 1,185,796
Total non-current liabilities 1,071,540 1,185,796
Total liabilities 1,305,323 1,416,219
Net position: (note 8)
Net investment in capital assets 6,602,450 6,702,245
Restricted 59,568 62,577
Unrestricted 781,505 819,748
Taotal net position $ 7,443,523 7,584,570

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



Cabazon Water District
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2017 and 2016

As Restated
2017 2016
Operating revenues:
Water consumption sales $ 1,022,111 978,063
Connection fees 2,549 2,975
Standby fees IRAR¥A 113,639
Facility fees 27,680 1,810
Other charges 36,188 36,731
Total operating revenues 1,199,699 1,133,218
Operating expenses:
Pumping and water treatment 28,453 115,630
Transmission and distribution ! 131,418
Customet accounts 46,136
General and administrative 723,330
Total operating expenses 1,016,514
Operating income before depreciation
and amortization 111,967 116,704
Depreciation (328,920) (327,617)
Operating loss (216,953) {210,913)
Non-operating revenue (expense
Property taxes 64,633 59,157
Rental income — cellular a 25,608 23,139
Investment earnings 10,806 7,125
Interest expense — long:term debt 7 (25,345) {28,300)
Other non-operating revenue (expense), net 204 481
75,906 61,602
{141,047) (149,311)
Net position, beginning of Year (note 7) 7,584,570 7,733,881
Net position, end of year h) 7,443,523 7,584,570

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



Cabazon Water District
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2617 and 2016

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers for water sales $
Proceeds from standby fees
Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials
and services

Net cash (used in)provided by operating activities

Cash flows from nen-capital financing activities:
Proceeds from rental income — cellular antennas
Proceeds from property taxes

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt

Net cash used in capital and related finaiiéj

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest earnings

Reconciliation of cash and cash eguivalents to
statements of financial posnt_ i:

Cash and cash equivalents b
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted

Total cash and cash equivalents $

Continued on next page

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

As Restated

2017 2016
1,079,601 1,012,214
11L,171 113,639
(281,199) (205,982)
(826,002) (934,267)
83,571 (14,396)
25,608 23,139
62,968 64,629
88,576 87,768
802) (123,667)
(111,323) (108,388)
(26,073) (29,007)
(255,198) (261,062)
10,806 6,788
10,806 6,788
(72,245) (180,902)
714,837 895,739
642,592 714,837
583,024 652,260
59,568 62,577
642,592 714,837




Cabazon Water District
Statements of Cash Flows, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

As Restated
2017 2616
Reconciliation of operating income(loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income(loss) $ {216,953) (210,913)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income(loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 328,920 327,617
Other non-operating 204 481
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable — water sales and services, net {26,928) (7,791)
Materials and supplies inventory 6,720 15,895
Prepaid and other assets (9,547 67
Increase(decrease) in labilities: _
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 10,308) (147,702)
Accrued wages and related payables 1,537 1,218
Compensated absences (8,075) 5,756
Customer advances and deposits 18,001 426
Total adjustments 300,524 196,517
Net cash provided by operati % 83,571 (14,396)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial stateménts




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity

The Cabazon Water District (District) was formed on May 21, 1954, and provides potable water and
water services within a 7,040 acre service area between the cities of Beaumont and Palm Springs within
the County of Riverside. The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors who serves four
year terms,

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District
is that the costs of providing water to its service area on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges (water sales), capital grants and similar funding. Revenues and expenses
are recognized on the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are regognized in the accounting period
in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the per curred, regardless of when the
related cash tlows take place.

Operating revenues and expenses, such as water sales
transactions associated with the principal activity of the Dist
each party receives and gives up essentially equal valug
expenses are also considered operating expenses. Other

ases, result from exchange
tidnsactions are those in which
sment, administration, and depreciation
nd expenses not included in the above

1ded, and No. 57 — OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and
des requirements for defined contribution OPEB plans that replace
_ laps in Statement No. 25 — Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit
Pension Plans and Note Disclosyres for Defined Coniribution Plans, as amended, Statement 43, and
Statement No.50 — Pension Disclosures.

In August 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 77 — Tax Abatement Disclosures. The objective of this
Statement is to improve financial reporting by giving users of financial statements essential information
that is not consistently or comprehensively reported to the public at present. Financial statement users
need information about certain limitations on a government’s ability to raise resources. This includes
limitations on revenue-raising capacity resulting from governmental programs that use tax abatements to
induce behavior by individuals and entities that is beneficial to the government or its citizens. Tax
abatements are widely used by state and local governments, particularly to encourage economtic
development.



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(1) Reporting Entity and Summmary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
C. Financial Reporting, continued

In December 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 78 — Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-
Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans. The objective of this Statement is to address a practice issue
regarding the scope and applicability of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions. This issue is associated with pensions provided through certain multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plans and to state or local governmental employers whose employees are provided with
such pensions. This Statement amends the scope and applicability of Statement 68 to exclude pensions
provided to employees of state or local governmental employers through a cost-sharing multiple-
empioyer defined benefit pension plan that meet certain criteria.

In January 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 80 — Blending Requirements for Certain Component
Units — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14, The objective of this statement is to improve financial
reporting by clarifying the financial statement presentation 1equuements f01 certain component units. The
additional criterion requires blending of a component unit incorp as a not-for-profit corporation in
which the primary government is the sole corporate member,

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 82 — Pension Issues
Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73. This Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of
payroll-related measures in required suppiementary information; {2) the selection of assumptions and the
treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial:Standard of Practice for financial reporting
purposes, and (3) the classification of payments, made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member)
contribution requirements.

An Amendment of GASB

Use of Estimates

L.

pnnc:ples requires management o m"ke“ estiniates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, deferred outflows of resouices, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, and disclosures
of contingent assets, dnfet:ed outﬂows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at
the date of the finas c1aE statements and the reported changes in net position during the reporting
period. Actual results: could differ from those estimates.

2. Cash and Cash Equw_alen_

Substantially all of the District’s cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District considers
all highly liquid investiments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash
equivalents.

3. Investments

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income 1eported for
that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or
losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments.

16



(1)
D.

Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2317 and 2010

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position, continued

4. Fair Value Measurement and Application

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on valuation inputs used to measure
the fair value of the asset, as follows:

Level 1 — Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2 — Valuation based on directly observable and indirectly observable inputs. These inputs
are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data through correlation or
market-corroborated inputs. The concept of market-corroborated inputs incorporates observable
market data such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted
intervals,

tions are made based on factors
nd other assumptions that are

Level 3 — Valuation based on unobservable inputs where ass;
such as prepayment rates, probability of defaults, loss sever
internally generated and cannot be observed in the market.

5. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

ourse of operations. When management
allowance method for the reservation and

The District extends credit to customers in the not
deems customer accounts uncollectible, the Dlstuct uses
write-off of those accounts.

6. Property Taxes and Assessments

The County of Riverside Assessor! sOfﬁce assesses ali real and personal property within the County
each year. The County of Riverside Tax Collectmxs Office bills and collecls the District’s share of

: ____~;the State (also known as the “Teeter Plan™), This alternative
taxmg entity included in the Teeter Plan with its total secured
xes are levied, including any amount uncollected at fiscal year-
end. Under this pldn;ithe Counfy assumes an obligation under a debenture or similar demand
obligation to advance funds.to:cover expected delinquencies, and by such financing, Cabazon Water
District receives the full amoiint of secured property taxes levied each year and, therefore, no longer
experiences delinquent taxes. Property tax in California is levied in accordance with Article 13A of
the State Constitution at one percent (1%) of countywide assessed valuations.

Property taxes receivable at year-end are related to property taxes collected by the County of
Riverside, which have not been credited to the District's cash balance as of June 30. The property tax
calendar is as foliows:

Lien date March |

Levy date July |

Due dates November | and March |
Collection dates December 10 and April 10



1)
D.

Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position, continued
7. Materials and Supplies Inventory

Materials and supplies inventory consists primarily of water meters, and pipes and pipefittings for
construction and repair to the District’s water transmission and distribution system. Inventory is
vahied at cost using a first-in, first-out cost method. Inventory items are charged to expense at the
time that individual items are withdrawn from inventory or consumed.

8. Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements.

9. Capital Assets

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at hista al cost. District policy has set the
capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $1,000,. Donated assets are recorded at estimated
fair market value at the date of donation. Upon retirement, or other dxsposmon of capital assets, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed. hom the respective balances and any gains or
losses are recognized, Depreciation is recorded on a i1 ra1ght—lme basis ovér the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows: -

e  Transmission and distribution mains — 15 to 40 years

*  Reservoirs and tanks — 10 to 40 years © . -

o Wells— 10 to 30 years
Buildings and structures — 5 to 40 years
Oftice furniture and eqmpm,ent —5to 10 years
o Tools and equipment —7 o '
o Vehicles — 5 years

10. Compensated Absences_

The District’s policy. i is to pernmit mployees to accumulate earned vacation up to a total of 240 hours
with amounts exceedmg the limit being paid out as part of the employee’s regular compensation.
Upon termination of employment, ‘employees are paid all unused vacation and 50% of any unused
sick time for non-exempt employees

11. Net Position

The District follows the financial reporting requirements of the GASB and reports net position under
the following classifications:

o Net Investment in Capital Assets Component of Nef Position — This component of net position
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by any debt
outstanding against the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are atiributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are included in this
component of net position

o Restricted Component of Net Position — This component of net position consists of assets that
have restrictions placed upon their use by external constraints imposed either by creditors
{debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments or
constraints imposed by law through enabling legislation.

18



(1)
D.

2)

Cash and investments as of June 30, are classified in the’

Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position, continued

o Unrestricted Component of Net Position — This component of net position is the net amount
of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that
are not included in the determination of the net investment in capital assets or restricted
component of net position.

12. Water Sales

Water sales are billed on a monthily cyclical basis. Estimated unbilled water revenue through June 30
has been accrued at year-end.

13. Budgetary Policies

«control, and evaluation purposes,
ual revenues and expenses with
nting is not used to account for

The District adopts an annual non-appropriated budget for planni
Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by comparisons ¢
planned revenues and expenses for the period. Encumbrance:
commitments related to unperformed contracts for constructii

Cash and Investments

2016
Cash and cash equivalents __ 652,260
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted: 62,571
Total 642,592 714,837
Cash and investments as of June 30, thesfollowing;
2017 2016
Cash on has $ 100 100
Deposits with 226,605 220,825
Investments 415,887 493,912
Total h 642,592 714,837
As of June 30, the District’s authorized deposits had the following maturities:
2017 2016
Deposits in California Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) 194 days 167 days

19



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(2) Cash and Investments, continued

Investments Authorized by the California Gavernment Code and the District’s Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District in accordance with the
California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy,
where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

U.S. Treasury obligations 5 years None None
Federal agency and bank obligations 5 years None None
Certificates-of-deposit (negotiable or placed) 5 years : 30% 10%
Commercial paper (prime) 10% 10%
Money market mutual funds 20% None
State and local bonds, notes and warrants None None
California Local Agency [nvestment Fund (LAIF) %o None None

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover. its deposats or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party “The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk
that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty {e.g.. br oker—deale:) to a transaction, a government will
not be able to recover the value of 1tq ’"uwestmen : " ‘collateral securities that are in the possession of
another par ty With respect fo inves s, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct
investments in marketable securitigs, Custodial credit” tisk does not apply to a local government’s indirect
investment in securities through the” se o mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).

The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would:dimit the expasme 4o custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, othet than
the following provisioi: tor deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by state or local; sovernmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral
pool held by a depository legulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount
deposited by the public agencies.

Of the bank balances, up to $250,000 as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, is federally insured and the remaining
balance is collateralized in accordance with the Code; however, the collateralized securities are not held
in the District’s name.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair
value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at
amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based
on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

20



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(2) Cash and Investments, continued
Investment in State Investment Pool, continued
The District’s deposit and withdrawal restrictions and limitations are as follows:

Same day transaction processing occurs for orders received before 10:00 a.m.

Next day transactions processing occurs for orders received after 10:00 am.

Maximum limit of 15 transactions (combination of deposits and withdrawals) per month,
Minimum transaction amount requirement of $5,000, in increments of $1,000.
Withdrawals of $10,000,000 or more require 24 hours advance.

s Prior to funds transfer, an authorized person must call LAIF to do a verbal transaction.

Interest Rate Risk

*» & & @

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the gréater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the Di 1 manage its exposure to interest
rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shotter term and fon pinvestments and by timing cash
flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio mat rés or comes close to maturity evenly over
time as necessary to provide for cash flow requirements and-liquidity needed*for operations.

ict’s investments to market interest rate
ribution of the District’s investments by

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the
fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows tk
maturity date,

Maturities of investments at June 30, 2017, cons

Remaining maturity
12 months

Investmen Total or less
356,319 356,319
Held by bond tr
Money mat} 59,568 59,568
b 415,887 415,887

Maturities of investments at Ju , 2016, consisted of the following:

Remaining maturity

12 months
Investment Type Total or less
Local Agency Investment Fund {(LAIF) $ 431,335 431,335
Held by bond trustee:
Money market funds 62,577 62,577
$ 493,912 493,912

21



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(2) Cash and Investments, continued
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California
Government Code, the District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-
end for each investment type.

Credit ratings of investments as of June 30, 2017, were as follows:

Minimum Rating as of
legal year-end Not
Investment Type Total rating AAA Rated

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) b 356,319 - 356,319
Held by bond trustee:
Money market funds 59,568 59,568 -
3 415,887 59,568 356,319
Credit ratings of investments as of June 30, 2016, were as f
Rating as of
year-end Not
_‘ Investment Type - rating AAA Rated
' Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A - 431,335
Held by bond trustee: o
Money market funds s _62__,_5,_77 AAA 62,577 -
493,912 62,577 431,335

Concentration of Cred)

The District’s investment policy contains no limitations on the amounts that can be invested in any one
issuer as beyond that stipulaté: ¢ California Government Code, There were no investments in any
one issuer (other than for U.Si Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that
represent 5% or more of total District’s investments as of June 30, 2017 and 2016.

(3) Accounts Receivable

The balance at June 30 consists of the following:

2017 2016
Accounts receivable - water sales and services $ 232,902 203,694
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (30,916) (28.636)
5 201,986 175,058

22



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(4) Capital Assets
Changes in capital assets for 2017 were as follows:

As Restated

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2016 Transfers Transfers 2017
Non-depreciable assets:
Land b 689,548 - 689,548
Construction-in-process 22,187 66,062 88.849
Total non-depreciable assets 712,335 66,062 778,397
Depreciable assets:
Transmission and distribution mains 10,173,269 10,173,269
Source of supply 1,519,523 1,541,488
Tools and equipment 118,016 123,319
Buildings and structures 12,281
Office furniture and equipment 71,808
Vehicles 106,308
Intangible plant 11,032
Total depreciable assets 12,039,505

Accumulated depreciation:
Transmission and distribution mains

248,238)

(4,301,094)

Source of supply (67,928) (449,466)
Tools and equipment (2,833) (118,673)
Buildings and structures {744 (4,625)
Office furniture and equipment (46,547) (5,608) (52,155)
Vehicles (89,156) {3,455) (92,610
Intangible plant {10,920) (112) (11,032)
Total accumulated depreéial:" (4,700,736) {328,920) (5,029,656)

Total depreciable assets, net 7,287,029 (277,180) 7,009,849
Total capital assets, net $ 7,999,364 _ 71788246

Major capital assets additions during the year include improvements to the source of supply and vehicles.

See note 7 Tor further discussion.

23



Cabazon Water District

Notes fo the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Fnded June 30, 2017 and 2016

(4)  Capital Assets, continued

Changes in capital assets for 2016 were as follows:

Non-depreciable assets:
Land
Construction-in-process

Total non-depreciable assets

Depreciable assets:
Transmission and distribution mains
Source of supply
Tools and equipment
Buildings and structures
Office furniture and equipment
Vehicles
Intangible plant

Total depreciable assets

Accumulated depreciation:
Transmission and distribution mains
Source of supply
Tools and equipment
Buildings and structures
Office furniture and equipment
Vehicles
Intangible plant

Total accumulated depreéi'é\"_ti@_p
Total depreciable assets, net -

Total capital assets, net

$

$

As Restated

As Restated

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2018 Transfers Transfers 2016
689,548 - - 689,548
89,478 13,094 {79,785) 22,787
779,026 13,094 {79,785) 712,335

10,087,650 109,129 (23,510) 10,173,269
[,448,564 - 1,519,523
118,016 - 118,016

10,623 - 12,281
54,576 - 63,188
90,456, - 90,456
11,032 N - 11,032
190,358 (23,510) 11,987,765

.'(247,039) 23,510 {4,052,856)
650 (67,888) - (381,538)
(2,378) - (115,838)

(_g;_.‘__g_lg'l") (500) - (3,881)
“@1,761) (4,786) - (46,547)
(84,380) (4,776) - (89,156)

: (10,670) {250} - (10,920)

(4,396,629) (327,617) 23,510 (4,700,736)
7,424,288 {137,259) - 7,287,029
8,203,314 7,999,364

Major capital assets additions during the year include improvements to the transmission and distribution
system and source of supply. See note 7 for further discussion.

(3) Compensated Absences

The changes in compensated absences balances at June 30 were as follows:

Balance Balance
2016 Additions Deletions 2017
h 18,345 [8,116 (26,191) 10,270
Balance Balance
2015 Additions Deletions 2016
h 12,589 18,077 (12,321) 18,345

24



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2616

(6) Long-Term Debt

Changes in fong-term debt in 2017 were as follows:

Principal Balance
2016 Additions Payments 2017
1993 Calif. Dept. of Water Resources Loan - E58416 $ 430,499 - (36,261} 394,238
Zions First National Bank 566,620 - (75,062} 491,558
Riverside County Economic Development Agency 300,000 - - 300,000
Total long-term debt 1,297,119 - {111,323} 1,185,796
Less current portion (111,323) (114,256)
Total non-current g 1,185,796 1,071,540
Changes in long-term debt in 2016 were as follows:
- Principal
2015 + Additions Payments 2016
1993 Calif. Dept. of Water Resources Loan - E38416 b 465 660' .,,.:ﬁ (35,161} 430,499
Zions First National Bank 639, 8'47 E (73,227) 566,620
Riverside County Economic Development Agency 300, 000 3 - - 300,000
Total long-term debt 1,405,507 - - (108,388) 1,297,119
Less current portion . (111,323)
Total non-current

1,185,796

1993 California Dept. of Water Re.s‘gzi-f'é.és Loan - E5841 o

In 1993 the Cabazon Water District contracted:with-the California Department of Water Resources for a
$979,860, 30-year loan under the 1'98-}"Ca11f'(')1mé Safe Drinking Water Bond Law to fund capital
improvements in order to comply with the California Safe Drinking Water Standards. Terms of the loan
call for monthly debt sew:ce deposﬁs by the District with a trustee. Principal and interest payments of
$24,346 are payable semi- -annually on:October 1* and April 1% each year at a rate of 2.955%, with the
obligation maturing in 2027 Annuai. debt service requirements on the 1993 California Dept. of Water
Resources Loan are as follows: ‘

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 37,314 11,377 48,691
2019 38,425 10,266 48,691
2020 39,550 9,141 48,691
2021 40,763 7,928 48,691
2022 41,959 6,732 48,691

2023-2027 196,227 14,291 210,518
Total 394,238 59,735 453,973
Current (37,314)
Non-current  § 356,924

25



Cabazon Water Distriet
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(6) Long-Term Debt, continued
Zions First National Bank

In 2013, the Cabazon Water District entered into a loan agreement with Zions First National Bank in the
amount of $787,309 to refinance the 1993 California Dept. of Water Resources Loan — E62039, and
provide funding for the construction and upgrade of District transmission mains. Terms of the loan call
for semi-annual debt service payments of principal and interest payable on April 1* and October 1™ of
each year at a rate of 2.49%, maturing in 2023. Annual debt service requirements on the loan are as
follows:

Fisca]_ Year Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 76,942 88,703
2019 78,870 88,703
2020 80,846 88,703
2021 82,872 88,703
2022 84,948 88,703
2023 87,080 88,703
Total 491,558 “7532,218

Current (76,942)

Non-current  $ 414,61

with connection fees as deveiopment ocelirs, The uhpaid balance has been classified as Eongnterm as no

connections are anticipate in 2017,

(7)  Restatement of N

Capital Assets

In fiscal year 2012, the District did not recognized capital assets contributed to the District. As a resull,
the District recorded a prior period adjustment to net position in the amount of $2,455,000.

The effects of the restatement are summarized as follows:

Net position as of June 30, 2015, as previously stated $ 5,278,881
Effect of adjustment to captial assets —

non-depreciable 280,000
Effect of adjustment to capital assets, net 2,175,000
Net position as of June 30, 2015, as restated i 7,733,881

26



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(8) Net Position

Calculation of net position as of June 30 were as follows:

2017 2016
Net investment in capital assets:
Capital assets, net b} 7,788,246 7,999,364
Loans payable — current portion (114,256) (111,323)
Loans payable — non-current portion {1,071,540) (1,185,796)
Total net investment in capital assets 6,602,450 6,702,245
Restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted 59,568 62,577
Total restricted ' 62,577
Unrestricted:
Non-spendable unrestricted net position:
Materials and supplies inventory 80,438" 87,158
Prepaid and other assets 19,902 10,355
Total non-spendable unrestricted 100,340 97,513
Spendable unrestricted net position i
designated as follows:
Operating reserve 681,165 722,235
Total spendable 681,165 722,235
781,505 819,748
$ 7,443,523 7,584,570

®)

The District provides pen benetits to all covered employees under the Collective Bargaining
Agreement to the Service Employees International Union National Industry Pension Fund. The District’s
contribution is based on 15% of gross wages. The District’s contributions to the Plan were $52,127 and
$40,565 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

(10) Deferred Compensation Savings Plan

In 2003, as amended in 2008, the District offered a Profit Sharing 401(a) Plan (Plan}, to qualified
employees. Participation in the Plan is open to employees who do not meet the eligibility requirements for
pension benefits under the terms of a separate collective bargaining agreement. At June 30, 2017 and
2016, the Plan included two participants, respectively. The market value of all assets held in trust by the
District’s 401(a) Plan at June 30, 2017 and 2016, amounted to $146,940 and $104,577, respectively.

27



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(11) Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is insured for a
variety of potential exposures. The following is a summary of the insurance policies carried by the
District as of June 30, 2017:

e Property: Blanket limit of $6,058,000 with a $1,000 deductible per incident.

¢ Bodily injury and property damage: $1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 in the aggregate.

e Personal and advertising injury: $1,000,000 per person or organization and $3,000,000 in the

aggregate,

¢ Professional liability: $1,000,000 per claim and $3,000,000 in the aggregate.

*  Wrongful acts: $1,000,000 per claim and $3,000,000 in the aggregate with a $1,000 deductible.

¢« Employment practices liability: $1,000,000 per claim and $3, OOGI""\OOO in the aggregate.

* Employee benefits liability: $1,000,000 per person and $3, ()O OOO in the agpgregate.

+ Automobile: $1,000,000 per occurrence with a $1, OOO OOO combmed single limit.

e Crime coverage: $5,000 to $250,000 limits per occurre

o Excess liability: $4,000,000 employer’s liability-&;

(12) Governmental Accounting Standards Boardt Statements Issued, Nof Yet Effective

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board: :""GASB) has lSSU&d several pronouncements prior to the
issue date, that has effective dates that may impact. futule ﬁnanmai presentations.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Smtemveiif Nn 75

In June 2015, the GASB issued S No. 75 - Aeccounting and Finencial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than, Pensions. The. objectwe of this Statement is to improve accounting
and financial reporting by state and Total governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions
(OPEB). It also unploves'inlbrmation provided by state and local governmental employers about
financial suppott for OPEB that is pio' ided: by other entities.

This Statement replaces thc requnements of Statement No. 45 — Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemploymem Benef ts Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No, 57 -~ OPER
Measuremenis by Agent Emplovers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. The provisions of
this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2017, The impact
of the implementation of this Statement to the District’s financial statements has not been assessed at this
time.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 81

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 81 — Irrevocable Splir-Interest Agreements. The
objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest
agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a
beneficiary of the agreement.

28



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

{12) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Staterment No. 81, continied

This Statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-interest
agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at the inception of the
agreement. Furthermore, this Statement requires that a government recognize assets representing its
beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest agreements that are administered by a third party, if the
government controls the present service capacity of the beneficial interests. This Statement requires that a
government recognize revenue when the resources become applicable to the reporting period.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, and should be applied retroactively.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 83

In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83 — Certain
Statement (1) addresses accounting and financial reporting fo
(AROs), (2) establishes criteria for determining the timing and

sel Refirement Obligations. This
in asset retirement obligations

liabiity is both incurred and reasonably estimable, (4) ¢
on the best estimate of the current value of outlays expe

be incurred, (5) requires the current value
ral inflation or deflation at east annually,

ment No. 84 — Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this
he identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
se activities should be reported.

This Statement establishes ¢t identifying fiduciary activities of all state and focal governments.
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included
to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary
activities.

This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other
employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3} private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial
funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent
arrangement that meets specific criteria.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018,
Earlier application is encouraged.

29



(Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(12) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 85

In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85 — Omnibus 2017. The objective of this Statement is
to address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain
GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending
component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits
{pensions and other postemployment benefits [OPEB]).

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017,
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 86

In May 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 86 — Certain Debt Exiinguishment Issues. The primary
objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in acco g and financial reporting for in-
substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transact which cash and other monetary
assets acquired with only existing resources—resources otherithan the proceeds of refunding debt—are
placed in an irrevocable trust for the sofe purpose of extinigtishing debt. Thiis Statement also improves
accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurafice on débt that is extinguished and notes to
financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance:

The requirements of this Statement are effective.ft
Earlier application is encouraged. '

repo'i ing,_periods beginning after June 15, 2017,

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.

eases. The objective of this Statement is to better
by improving accounting and ﬁnanciai leporting

meet the information needs of i
for leases by governments. Thls
by nequumg tecogmt;on of ¢

recognize a lease receivableand a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancmg the relevance and
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning atter December i5, 2019,
Earlier application is encouraged.

(13) Commitments and Contingencies
Grant Awards

Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such audit could lead to
requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.
Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant.

Litigation

In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject fo claims and litigation from outside parties.
Afier consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any,
will not materially affect its financial condition.

30



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(14) Subsequent Events

Events occurring after June 30, 2017, have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial
statements or disclosure as of December 19, 2017, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

31




Report on Internal Cont and Compliance






Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on the Andits of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District
Cabazon, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained.-in” Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial. statements of the Cabazon Water
District (District), as of and for the years June 30, 2017 and 2046, and the refated notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated December 19, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In plamlmg and per fo:mmg our audzts of the financial statey

nts, we considered the District’s internal

purpose of expressing an opinion on tl
do not express an opinion on the effectis

ourse of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
) ;__,,ly basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
~such th'lt the:e isa 1easonable possibility that a matet E&l mlsstatement

v a combina{'ion of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
important enough to merit attention by those charged with

significant deficiency is®
severe than a material
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audits we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncomptiance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audits, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matiers that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

32



Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on the Audits of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, continued

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the resulits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government  Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
December 19, 2017

33



O NBS

helping communities
fund tomorrow

San Francisco - Regional Office
870 Market Streef, Suite 1223
San Francisco, CA 34102

Davis - Regional Office
140 B Street, Suite 5-292
Davis, CA 95616

Temecula - Corporate Headquarters
32605 Temecula Parkway, Suite 100
Temecula, CA 92592

Toli free: 800.676.7516

nbsgov.com

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM

TO: CALVIN LOUIE, GENERAL MANGER
CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
FROM: GREG HENRY, CONSULTANT

KIM BOEHLER, PROJECT MANAGER
SUBJECT: CAPACITY CHARGE STUDY
DATE: JANUARY 11, 2018

PURPOSE

The Cabazon Water District (District) retained NBS to conduct a water capacity charge study (the Study)
to ensure these charges reflect the cost of capital infrastructure needed to serve future customers. The
purpose of this Study is to summarize the results of our analysis, and present the updated capacity
charges’ that are imposed on new or upsized connections. Capacity charges are one-time fees intended
to reflect the cost of existing infrastructure and planned improvements available to serve future
customers. Capacity charges are subject to Government Code section 66013, which prescribes the means
by which public agencies may impose water capacity charges.

The attachment to this transmittal includes the quantitative nexus analysis used to develop the water

capacity charges for the District.

Various methodologies have been and are currently used to calculate water capacity charges. The most
common include establishing the charges based on:

e The value of existing (historical) system assets, often called a “buy-in” methodology.
e The value of planned future improvements, also called the “incremental” or “system
development” methodology.

1 Otherwise known as system development charges, impact fees or connection fees.

ONBS

Page 1



e A combination of these two approaches.

This Study uses the combination approach, which requires future customers to pay both their fair share
of existing system assets as well as their share of the planned future capital improvements needed to
provide them with capacity in the District’s water system. As a result, future customers connecting to the
District’s water system would enter as equal participants with regard to their financial commitment and
obligations to the utility.

In calculating the water capacity charges, the replacement-cost-new-less-depreciation (RCNLD) value of
existing system assets was used to calculate the buy-in component of the capacity charge. The Handy
Whitman Index of Public Utility Construction Costs?, which is a regionally specific construction index that
tracks water utility construction costs, was used to estimate the replacement value of the existing system
assets. The District can use the Handy Whitman Index or the Engineering News Record Construction Cost
Index going forward to adjust capacity charges in future years to offset the impacts of inflation. All
calculations in this Study for both existing and future planned assets are in 2017 dollars, and are rounded
to the nearest dollar.

PROJECTED FUTURE GROWTH AND FUTURE CUSTOMERS

Larger meters have the potential to use more of the system’s capacity, compared to smaller meters. The
potential capacity demanded is proportional to the maximum hydraulic flow through each meter size as
established by the AWWA3 hydraulic capacity ratios. The AWWA hydraulic capacity ratios (also known as
flow factors, or meter equivalencies) used in this study are shown in the fourth column of Figure 1.

As an example, a 2-inch meter has a greater capacity, or potential peak demand than a 5/8-inch meter.
The “equivalency to a 5/8-inch meter” is calculated by dividing the maximum capacity or flow of larger
meters by the capacity of the base (5/8-inch) meter size, which is typically the most common residential
meter size.

The meter flow factors shown in Figure 1 are the ratio of potential flow through each meter size compared
to the flow through a 5/8-inch meter. The 5/8-inch meter is the most common meter size for the utility
and is used to compare the capacities of the larger meters. For example, column 4 in Figure 1 shows that
a two-inch meter has the equivalent maximum flow of eight 5/8-inch meters, or, stated differently, eight
times the equivalent maximum flow of one 5/8-inch meter.

The actual number of meters by size is multiplied by the corresponding meter equivalency (flow factor)
to calculate the total number of equivalent meters. The number of equivalent meters is used as a proxy
for the potential demand that each customer can place on the water system. A significant portion of a
water system’s peak capacity, and in turn the utility’s fixed capital costs, are related to meeting system
capacity requirements. Therefore, the capacity charge for a new connection will be proportional to the
service’s meter equivalence.

2 The Handy-Whitman Index of Public Utility Construction Costs, Whitman, Requardt & Assoc., LLP, Bulletin No. 184,
3 “AWWA” js the American Water Works Association.

N BS Page 2




The equivalent meter calculation is summarized for standard use meters in Figure 1 (and in Table 1 of the
Technical Appendix) and the result of this analysis is that while there are currently 885 connections to the
water system, there are 1,489 water meter equivalent (i.e., 5/8 x 3/4-inch) units.

Figure 1. Meter Equivalence

Meter Equivalence
i Flow Factor | Water Meter
Meter Size Existing Water|  pjaximum for5/8x3/4 | Equivalent
Meters Flow (gpm)* inch Units
Base Meter

5/8 x 3/4 Inch 816 20 1.00 816.0
3/4Inch 23 30 1.50 34.5
linch 13 50 2.50 32.5
11/2Inch 5 100 5.00 25.0
2Inch 21 160 8.00 168.0
3Inch 3 320 16.00 48.0
4Inch 2 500 25.00 50.0
6 Inch 1 1,000 50.00 50.0

8 Inch - 2,800 140.00 -
i 12 Inch - 1 i 5,300 265.00 265.0

AR ¢

1. Source: AWWA M1, Table B-2. Assumes displa
and Compound Class | for 3" through 12".

2. Total Accounts include District and other unbilled meters

and represents the full existing capacity of the system.

The District’s capital improvement plan, which is the basis for defining the costs of planned future capital
assets, extends through FY 2022/23. Therefore, for this Study, only growth through FY 2022/23 is
considered to maintain a consistent timeframe. Per District staff projections there will be, on average,
two new 5/8- inch meter connections per year over the next five years. In Figure 2 {and Table 2 of the
Technical Appendix), expected growth is used to calculate the percentage of total capacity represented
by future customers. The future customers are expected to represent 0.7 percent of the total meter
equivalents in the District.

Figure 2. Existing and Projected Customers through FY 2022/23

Projectéd | Allocation Factors Cumulative Change

. o Existing |Service Total
Demographic Statistics

Total (thru FY Existing Future Number % Ihctaase

Customers | Customers of Units

2022/23)*
Meter Equivalent Units 1,489 1,499 99.3% 0.7% 10 0.7%
1, Staff assumes approximately 2 new connections each year over the next five years.

Q N BS Page 3



EXISTING AND PLANNED FUTURE ASSETS

The capital assets addressed in this Study include existing assets and planned capital improvements (i.e.,
the buy-in and incremental assets). Existing assets are often valued using “book value” (i.e., original cost
less depreciation). However, replacement costs provide a more accurate estimate of these asset values.
Ideally, replacement values reflect the actual field condition of the assets (i.e., whether they are behind
or ahead of the depreciation curve based on actual condition rather than the remaining years of expected
life). Unfortunately, this information was not available for this Study, and the estimated RCNLD based
upon the 2017 value was developed as the cost basis for the new capacity charges.

For the purpose of this Study, assets that have exceeded their useful life (as defined in the District’s asset
records) were considered to have no remaining value and so no RCNLD value. The resulting RCNLD value
of existing assets are summarized in Figure 3 (and Table 3 of the Technical Appendix) as the System Buy-
In Cost Basis. The detailed asset listing can be found in Exhibit A of the Technical Appendix.

Figure 3. Summary of Existing Asset Values

Replication Values®

Original Values'

Asset Cast
) ik System Buy-
Asset Category Depreciation Less Depreciation iy
Asset Cost 2 e Asset Cost In Cost Basis
to Date Depreciation to Date

Buildings & Structures ) 12,281 | $ 4625 | S 7,655 | $ 17,652 | 7,512 | § 10,140

Intangibles 11,032 11,032 0 6,307 6,307 -

Land 689,548 - 689,548 689,548 = 689,548

Office Furn & Equip 71,808 52,155 19,653 30,999 10,455 20,544

Source of Supply 1,541,487 449,467 1,092,021 1,750,985 513,212 1,237,773

Tools & Equipment 123,319 118,672 4,646 76,992 72,240 4,752

Trans & Distribution 10,173,270 4,301,094 5,872,176 19,194,499 8,781,477 10,413,021

Vehicles 106,309 92,611 13,698 70,263 56,217 14,046
Total Capital Facilities

& Equlpment $12,729,054 | § 5,029,656 | $ 7,699,397 | $21,837,244 | $ 9,447,420 | $ 12,389,824

1. Detailed capital asset list and current depreciation provided by Staff via file (Exhibit A). Source: 6.30.17 Fixed Asset listing.xlsx.

2. Assets provided with Depreciation through June 2017.

3. Replication values are calculated by escalating the original values (from Districts fixed asset report) from service date to 2017 values
using historical cost inflation factors from the Handy-Whitman Index of Public Utility Construction Costs, for Water Utility Construction
in the Pacific Region. The percentage change in the asset cost is shown in column M of the Existing Assets Detail tab, labeled "Adjusted %

of Original Value".
4. Cost basis is thereplication value less accumulated depreciation.

RCNLD costs were allocated to existing customers based on the 99.3-percent allocation factor shown in
Figure 1 (and 0.7-percent allocation factor for future customers). The resulting allocation of $82,654,
representing the value of exiting system assets, to future customers is shown in Figure 4 (and Table 4 of
the Technical Appendix).

@ N BS Page 4



Figure 4. Existing Asset Values Allocated to Future Customers

Allocation Basis (%)° Distribution of Cost Basis ($)

System Buy-

Asset Categc:)ry1 Existing Future Existing Future

Customers Customers Customers Customers

In Cost Basis”

Buildings & Structures S 10,140 99.3% 0.7% S 10,072 | § 68
Intangibles - 0.0% 0.0% - -
Land 689,548 99.3% 0.7% 684,948 4,600
Office Furn & Equip 20,544 99.3% 0.7% 20,407 137
Source of Supply 1,237,773 99.3% 0.7% 1,229,516 8,257
Tools & Equipment 4,752 99.3% 0.7% 4,720 32
Trans & Distribution 10,413,021 99.3% 0.7% 10,343,555 69,466
Vehicles 14,046 99.3% 0.7% 13,952 94
Total Copialiaclitiol $12,389,824 |  99.3% 0.7% | $12,307,170 | $ 82,654
& Equipment

1. Detailed capital asset list and current depreciation provided by Staff via file (Exhibit A). Source: 6.30.17 Fixed Asset listing.xIsx.
2, Cost basis is thereplication value less accumulated depreciation.
3, Refer to Figure 1 or Table 1 of the Technical Appendix: proportionate allocation between existing and future

The estimated cost of planned future improvements (in 2017 dollars) is used to calculate the system
development component of the capacity charge. Staff provided the list of capital projects as well as an
allocation of the capacity provided by each improvement assigned to future customers. Future customers
were allocated $1,135 of these future capital project costs, as shown in Figure 5 (and Table 7 of the
Technical Appendix).

Figure 5. Planned Asset Values Allocated to Future Customers

Sustern % Allocation Distribution of Cost Basis (5)
Current Cost Y
24 ; : Development
Facility / Equipment Estimate R for Existing Existing Future
(Dollars)* ) Customers | Customers | Customers | Customers
Vehicle S 16,000 | $ 16,000 99.3% 0.7% S 15,893 | S 107
Property Purchase & Prep 154,189 154,189 99.3% 0.7% 153,160 1,029
Meter Replacement? 74,953 74,953 | 100.0% 0.0% 74,953 -
Total S 245141 | S 245,141 | 99.5% 0.5% S 244,006 | S 1,135

1. Capital project costs & equipment purchases; source files: Updated FY 16-17 With December.xlsx

2. Costbasis is the replication value less accumulated depreciation.
3. Staff has seta target 150 new meters each year. Itis assumed each new meter will cost $75, including installation.
For each account thereis one, unique meter, so there is no excess capacity avalable for future customers.

ADJUSTMENTS TO THE COST BASIS

Before the capacity charges are developed, an adjustment was applied to the cost basis to account for
existing cash reserves, Existing cash reserves are treated as an asset, since they were contributed by
existing customers and are available to pay for capital and/or operating costs of the water utility. The cash
reserves are, in a sense, no different from any other system asset. The existing cash reserves allocated to

QONBS



future customers are summarized in Figure 6 (and Table 6 of the Technical Appendix). This calculation also
uses the same 0.7-percent allocation factor from Figure 2. The allocation of cash reserves to future
customers is $3,869.

Figure 6. Cash Reserves Allocated to Future Customers

% Allocation S - Allocation
Beginning

Woater Cash Reserves
Cash

Existing Existing
Customers | Customers | Customers | Customers

Cash in Banks (Operating)® S 580,000 | 99.3% 0.7% S 576,131 | S 3,869
1. As of July 1, 2017 Source: Email from Cindy Byerrum sent October 22,2017

There was also a credit to the cost basis related to outstanding debt. This credit was included because
some existing assets were at |least partially funded with debt that will be paid for in future years by the
“existing customers” at that time. Since new connections pay their share of existing asset values, including
the remaining outstanding debt on those same assets would double count the asset values in the capacity
charges. Therefore, a credit is given in the capacity charge calculation for the value of future principal, to
avoid double-charging new customers for debt-funded assets. Included as part of the debt is a payback to
Desert Hills Premium Outlets (DHPO) for assets which they owned, and which became part of the District
when the joined. DHPO assets added to the capacity of the District (and are included in Figure 4. Existing
Asset Values Allocated to Future Customers. Figure 7 (and Table 5 of the Technical Appendix) shows that
the credit provided to future customers in the capacity charge development is $6,300.

Figure 7. Outstanding Debt Allocated to New Customers

9 ion® - Allocation
oUtstanding % Allacation S

Principal Existing Future Existing Future
(thru 2026) | Customers | Customers | Customers | Customers

DWR Loan No E58416 S 375734 99.3% 0.7% |$ 373,227 |3% 2,507
Zion First National Installment Sale Agreement 453,087 99.3% 0.7% 450,064 3,023
DHPO Payhack 115,500 99.3% 0.7% 114,729 771
Grand Total S 944,321 99.3% 0.7% $ 938,021 | $ 6,300

1. Outstanding principal is allocated to existing and future services based on projected growth in the system. See Table 1 for detail.

CALCULATED CAPACITY CHARGES

The sum of the existing and planned asset values (that is, the system buy-in and system development
costs in Figures 4 and 5), along with the adjustment for existing cash reserves (Figure 6), defines the total
cost basis allocated to future customers. Figure 8 (and Table 8 of the Technical Appendix) summarizes
how this cost basis is developed. The costs associated with System Buy-In component have been
separated from those associated with System Expansion component, as shown below in Figure 8.

QONBS



Figure 8. Summary of Capacity Charge Calculation

Increase in 5/8x3/4-inch Equivalent Meters
{ |;:. velc _“] m , e ~‘ I’ \ _-: n ¥ I ‘ 5":

System Asset Values Allocated to New Deve
Existing System Buy-In S 82,654 | § =
Future System Expansion - 1,135
Total: Existing & Future System Costs S 82,654 | S 1,135
Adjustments to Cost Basis:
Cash Reserves S 3,869 | S =
Outstanding Long-Term Debt (Principal) Allocated to Future Users (6,300) -
Total: Adjustments to Cost Basis

The total adjusted cost basis is then divided by the number of future customers, measured in meter
equivalents expected to connect to the system (that is, the 10 shown in Figure 2). This calculation results
in the new maximum charge the District can charge for water connections (per meter equivalent unit) as
shown in Figure 9 (and Table 9 of the Technical Appendix).

Figure 9. Calculated Water Capacity Charge

Maximum | Maximum
Adjusted Adjusted Planned Capacity Capacity
Summary of Costs Allocated to System System Additional Charge Charge

Capacity Charge Cost Basis Cost Basis Meter (S/Meter | (S/Meter
(Buy In) (Expansion) | Equivalents | Equivalent) | Equivalent)
(BuyIn) |(Expansion)

Maximum Water Connection

2 1,135| 10 8,02 4
Meter Equivalent 5802245 13 5 022 | %

Given the calculated maximum charge per meter equivalent shown in Figure 9, Figure 10 (and Table 10 of
the Technical Appendix) shows the maximum capacity charge for each meter size based on the estimated
reasonable cost of providing the services for which the capacity charges will be imposed. Moreover, the
manner in which those costs are allocated to a payor bear a fair or reasonable relationship to the payor’s
burdens on, or benefits received from, the District’s services in providing the system facilities required to
serve the payor. The charges are scaled based on the hydraulic capacity of each size meter connected to
the system.

ONBS



Figure 10. Capacity Charge Based on Meter Size

Equivalency Factor Capacity Capacity
Ch Ch
" Equivalency to Unit Cost L argfe Total Capacity

; Maximum : (Buy-In (Expansion
Meter Size 4 5/8 x 3/4-inch (S/Meter Charge

Continuous % Component | Component

i Base Meter Equivalent) Per Meter
Flow (gpm) Size Cost) Cost)

Per Meter Per Meter
5/8x 3/4Inch 20 1.00 $8,022 $8,022 S114 $8,136
3/4 Inch 30 1.50 $8,022 $12,034 $170 $12,204
1Inch 50 2.50 $8,022 520,056 5284 $20,340
11/2Inch 100 5.00 $8,022 $40,112 S568 $40,679
2 Inch 160 8.00 58,022 S64,179 5908 $65,087
31Inch 320 16.00 58,022 $128,358 $1,817 $130,174
41Inch 500 25.00 $8,022 $200,559 52,838 $203,397
6Inch 1,000 50.00 $8,022 $401,118 §5,677 $406,794
12 Inch 5,300 265.00 $8,022 $2,125,923 $30,087 $2,156,010

1. Source: AWWA M1, Table B-2. Assumes displacement meters for 5/8” through 27,
Compound Class | for 3" through 8", and Turbine Class Il for 10" through 12” meters.

QONBS



CONSULTANT RECOMMENDATIONS

NBS recommends the District take the following actions:

Approve and Accept this Study: NBS recommends the District Board of Directors formally
approve and adopt this Study and its recommendations, and proceed with the steps required to
implement the new water capacity charges. This Study provides documentation of the analysis
and the basis for calculation of the proposed capacity charges.

Implement New Capacity Charges: Based on the analysis presented in this Study, NBS
recommends the District Board of Directors implement the new capacity charge of 58,136 per
meter equivalent, as developed in this Study. This is the maximum the District can charge per
equivalent meter unit.

Annually Review Charges and Revenue: Any time an agency adopts new rates, charges and
fees, they should be periodically reviewed — even more so when new capital facilities are
planned and/or significant replacement projects are undertaken. This will help ensure the
revenue generated is sufficient to meet the costs of capital projects, the fiscal health of the
District is maintained, and future customers bear their fair share of the District’s water system
costs.

PRINCIPAL ASSUMPTIONS AND CONSIDERATIONS

In preparing this Study and the recommendations included herein, NBS has relied on a number of principal
assumptions and considerations with regard to financial matters, number of customer accounts,
conditions and events that may occur in the future. This information and assumptions, including the
District’s asset records, financial information and customer billing data (provided by District staff), were
provided by sources we believe to be reliable, although NBS has not independently verified this data.

While we believe NBS' use of such information and assumptions is reasonable for the purpose of this

Study and its recommendations, some assumptions will invariably not materialize as stated herein or may
vary significantly due to unanticipated events and circumstances. Therefore, the actual results can be
expected to vary from those projected to the extent that actual future conditions differ from those
assumed by us or provided to us by others.

fg} N BS Page 9



TECHNICAL APPENDIX

@ N BS Page 10



91 jo | abed 91.62°929°008 | woo noBsqummm
SaN Aq paiedald

(ul-Ang wa1sAg) uonesapisuo) Joy uawdinb3 pue saiyjioe4 jeude) Sunsixd Jo |1e1aQg 91-6 v

San|eA 1955y Wa1sAS BullsiX] JO uollewls] 10} pasn Xapu] UBwWUYM-APUBH WOJ) SI010B UOIIB[jU| paiuiid 10N L
$994 UOI1I3UUO) J31BAN Palepdn 8 9

uone[naje) 1s0J Hun palepdn L S

(uswdojanag ws3sAs) uollesapisuo) Joy uswdinb3 pue sanjioe |eyde) pauue|d 9 ¥

UOI1BI0||Y 221AJ3S 102 pUe S2AI953Y Yse) S €

(u-Ang wa1sAs) uoljesspisuo) Joj Juawdinb3 pue saiyoe4 jeude) Suilsixg jo Alewwng t-€ 4
suol1aafoud pue eleq alydesSowsq 4 T

Jaquinpn
uonun4

HQqlyx3

S1uUa1U0) JO 3|qel
sisAjeuy 324 Alpdede) Ja1em
sjusquo) jo ajqel 1J141S1d 431VM NOZVavDd



gl jo z abed

T 1I191HX3

9152°9/9°008 | woa noBsqu-mmm
SN Aq pasedaid

sieah SN} IX9U 2y Jono JeaA YJE9 SUO0I12”9UU0I Mau ¢ >_mu_.m..c_xohn_n_m SIWINSsE }Jeis "1

%L°0 ot %L°0 %€ 66 66%'T 68Y'T SHuM Ju3jeAINb3 Ja1aIN
- (€z/zzoz

A4 nayl) |ejol

sjun jo s1awoisn) si3wo1sn)

aseadu| %
Jaquinn aining Sunsix3

sansnels aiydessowaqg

[ A RCRITVELS Sunsixg
s10}Je4 uonedo||y —umuum_.o._a

28uey) annejnwn)

SYIFIAINN 3JIAY3S A3133r0¥d ANV DNILSIX3 - € 2I9.L

‘wiaisAs ay3 o Ayoedes Suilsixa ||ny Y1 sUasaUda] pUB SIS19W PR||IqUN JIYI0 PUE 1011SIJ SPN|OUl SIUNOJIY |BI0] "€
€T Y3nodyi € 1oy | ssed punodwo) pue ,z ydnoays g/ 104 s191aW Juawade|dsip sswnssy ‘Z-g 3(qol ‘TN VMAMY :924n0s
(xs|xe12Q2sEQ Ul PIZIIBLIWNS PUBR PAUIGWOI BIEP) S|XM0daYy |SND 1918IA 18 98esn 9TOTZ ‘STOZ ‘PTOT :S9|14 924N0S WOJ SI219|N pue uondwnsuo) '

suun

119\ asegq

NAEQE

,....a kD e St .w ln ».Kc... ,m.‘.s o] ‘. i TR “u.s., { Y

0°99¢ 00°59¢ 00€’s T Yauj ¢t

- 00°0vT 008°C - yaui g
00§ 00°0s 000T T yauj 9
0°0s 00°s¢ 00s 4 youl ¥
08 0091 oce € Yyauj €
0°891 00°8 091 Tc yaur ¢
0S¢ 00's oot S Yuizg/TT
S¢ce 0S¢ 0s €T Yauit
Sve 0S'T 0} €C Youl /€
0918 00T 0¢ 918 Youl /€ X 8/

Yyoul p/e xg/s [S1919N

2zIS 1919\
J91e\ Sunsixy

juajeninby MO|{ wnuwixepl

10} 1032B4 MO
1913N 43318/ 3 A0RE] MOH

2Juajeninby J219 N

SLINN LNITVAIND3I Y313 - T 3IqeL

suoiaafoid pue eieq 2iydesSowag
sishjeuy asieyy Ajlpede) Jarepn
1J141S1d ¥31VM NOZVaVD



gl 10 ¢ abey 9162°9.9°008 | Wod noBsqu mmm
SgN Aq paiedald

‘uoi1eldaldap paleNWNIde SS3| anjeA uoliedl|dal 3yl S| Siseq 1s0D p

- anjeA [euiBuQ 4o % pajsnipy, pPRl2ge| ‘gel |1BI9Q S3195SY SUlISIX3 9Y3 JO Al UWN[OD U] UMOYS S| 3500 3355€ 9y} Ul aSueyd

a8ejusniad sy] "uoiday J1j19Rd Y1 Ul UOIIINIISUOD AN|IIN 1918 JOJ ‘SISOD) UOIINIISUOD ANJIIN 21|gNd JO Xapu| uewWlYM-ApUBH SY3 WOoJ) S10308) UOIIE[jul
1502 |B21401S1Y SuUISn San|en /£ TO¢ 01 93P 321nJas wou) (Hodau Jasse paxiy s3914351Q wody) sanjea jeuiduo ayl Suizejeass Aq pale|najed ale sanjea uoniedljday "¢
*£10Z 2unf ysnodyi uonepaidag yiim papiroid s19ssy ¢
"XS[X*8ul3S1| 19SSy PaXld /T Q€9 :224n0S *(¥ UqIyXx3) 3ju ela Jeis Aq papiaoad uoliedaidap jualind pue 1si| 19sse |elided pajieiaq ‘T

vZ8'68ECT S | 0TV Lvv'e S | YYT'LEBTT S | L6E'669'L S | 959'620'S S | ¥SO6TLCT S juswdinb3 g sani|ide4 [ejide) [ejo0]
9v0'V1 L1298 €920L 869°CT 1196 60£°90T : SIIIYIA
TZO'ET¥'0T LLY'T8L'S 661776161 9/1°2L8'S ¥60'T0EY 0LT'ELTOT uonnNquIsiq g sued]
TSL'Y ove'eL 766°9L 9¥9'y 7/9°8TT 6TE'ECT juswdinb3 73 sjoo]
ELLLETT TITETS G86°0SL°T 120°C60°T L9t'61Y L8Y'TYST Alddns jo a2unos
S0 SSH0T 6660€ €59°6T 9STZS 808'TL dinb3 % uing a01\0
85689 - 85689 815689 - 875689 pueq
@ LOE9 LOE9 0 TE0TT TE0TT sa|qisueju]
ovT‘0T S| TIs'L S| 2s9Lt $|68S9°L S | sT9'v $ | 18TCT S $34n19N.135 13 s3ulp|ing

siseq 150 Sl 1507 1355y d 2220 0
|
,>'5ed 150D uonenaidag uoneaidag

uj-Ang wajsAs $597 15070 19SSy
Sonjen uonediday Sonjep JeuisuQ
SISVYd 1SOJ NI-ANg INJL1SAS 40 NOILY1NITVI - € @9l

350D 19sSY
uoneaidag H\comm“mu 19ssy

(ul-Ang wa1sAs) uonpiapisuo) Jof Juawdinbg pup saiif1an4 [p1dn) Builsix3
sisAjeuy 2841ey) Arpede) Ja1epp
Z LIgIHX3 1J141SIa Y31LVYM NOZVavD



91 10 ¥ abeyd 916/'9/9°008 | woo AoBsqummm
S9N Aq pasedaid

*sJ3sn 3ininy pue Sul3sIXa UaaMlaq uoiledo]|e ajeuoipodoud 1T 3|ge] 01 43J3Y ‘€
‘uoj3eDaidap pajeNWNIde Ss3| anjea uoliedljdal ay3 si siseq 150D 7
"Xs[x"Su13s1| 19SSV PaxXild £T'0€°9 :924n0S *(V UGIYX3) 314 BIA Je1s Ag papiacad uoliepaldap jualind pue 1s1) 19sse |ended pajielaq ‘T

$59Z8 S | OLTLOSTT S | - S %L°0 %€°66 %0°0 $28'68€°CT S juawdinb3 13 sani|ded [eyde) [ejo0)
v6 7S6°ET = %L°0 %E'66 %00 9v0'vT SIYIA
99%'69 GSSEVEOT - %L0 %E'66 %00 TTO'€TV0T uonnquisiq g suel]
43 0TL'Y - %L°0 %€'66 %00 TSL'Y awdinb3 13 sjoo]
LST'8 915'67C'T s %L°0 %E 66 %00 €LLLETT Alddng jo aaunog
LET L0%°0T - %L°0 %E'66 %0°0 50T dinb3 3 uing 1O
009t 876789 = %L0 %E'66 %00 85’689 pueq
- - = %0°0 %0°0 %00 - sa|qiSuelu
89 S | 22001 S |- S %L°0 %E 66 %00 orT'01 S $34n30n.1S 1 s8ulp|ing

sishjeuy sishjeuy
siawo3isn) sJiawo3isn) siawolsn) siawolsn)
wo.y ,siseq 1509

wou
24nIn4 Sunsixg 4 unin4 Sunisixgy
apnpax3 apn[ax3 ul-Ang waisAs

ﬂEommumu 19SSy

($) siseg 350D jo uonnquasia (%) siseg uonesojy
SYINO1SND FUNLNS ANV DNILSIX3 OL SISYE LSO NI-ANd IWILSAS 40 NOILYDOTIV - ¥ 3|9eL

(u-Ang waisAs) uonpiapisuo) Jof Juawdinbg pup sajyiIo4 [p31dn) Builsixg
sisAjeuy a8iey) Aydede) s191epn
¢ 1I9IHX3 1IIY1SIg ¥31VM NOZvavd



gl Jo g abey 916.°9.9°008 | woo roBsquimamm
S9N Aq pasedald

/T0Z 2T 4990320 U3s wnaiaAg Apu) WwioJ) [flewy :324nos £102 ‘T 3::0 SV T
00008 $|698€ S |TET9LS $| %0°00T %L°0 %€'66 | 000085 S ;(Bunesado) syueg u1 yse

siawoisn) | sidwoisn) siawolsn) | sidawolsn)
aining Sunsixg ainin4 Sunsix3y

ysed

SaNISAY Yse) J3je
SuluuiSag R ]

uonedIoj|y - S uonedlo|y %

SYIINOLSND FdNLNd ANV DNILSIX3 OL SINYISIY HSVD 40 NOILVIOTTV - 9 d|9el

‘WI31SAS ay1 01 Pa1asuUU0d O4HQ uaym papinroad Ajoedes [euonippe o3 anp yoegied OdHQ T
‘[le19p 40} T 3|geL 935 "Ww1sAs Y1 ul yimoud pa1oafosd uo paseq saoinias aining pue Suilsixa o3 paledoje si [ediourd Suipueising T

TZEYP6 S| 00€'9 S | TZO8E6 S %00T %L°0 %E°66 TCEWW6 S [elo] puein
T | 00S'STT TLL 6CLVTT %00T %L0 %E'66 00S‘STT A2eqAed OdHA
T | £80°€SY €20'¢ #9005V %00T %L0 %E"66 £80'€SY 1UaWa343Y 9|eS JUSW||BISU| [BUOIIEN 1S1I4 UOIZ
T | ¥EL'SLE S| £0SC S| izeeLe s %00T %L°0 %E 66 vEL'SLE S 9T+¥8S3 ON UBOT YMA

sidwoisn) | siswoisn) slawolisn) | siawoisn) (9202

aining Sunsix3 ainin4 Sunsixg  [nJyl) [eddund
Suipueising

uonelo||y - w uonexo||y %

SY3IINOLSNI J¥NLNd ANV DONILSIX3 OL1 1930 40 NOILYIOTIV - S @l9el

S32IA19S a4Nning pue Suilsixj 03 1gag SulpuelsINg pue SaAI9s3Y YSe) JO UoIedo||y
sishjeuy a81ey) Arpede) ss1epn

€ LIgIHX3 1J1¥1SIa ¥3LVM NOZvavd



91 Jo g abed 915/2°9.9°008 | woo rofsqu mmm
S9N Ag pasedaig
‘SJaWl03sN2 aJininy 10} 3|qejeae Ayoeded ss9oxa ou S| 943y} 0S ‘4213w anbjun ‘auUo S| 343yl JUNOJIE YIes 404
‘uolle||eIsul Suipnjaul 'S/ < 1500 [|IM 1339U MU YIBS PIWNSSe S| 3] "JeaA YIea SISlaw mau QST 198.4e1 B 135 sey Je1s ‘€
‘uoileinaidap pale|nwnode ss3| anjeA uopedl|dal ay3 si siseq 150D '
Xs|xJaquiadaq YUM £LT-9T A4 paiepdn s3] 924n0s ‘saseyound juswdinba i s3s02 193loud jenide) T
SET'T $ | 900'vvT c S %S0 %566 %00 PT'ste S | TPTSkE S [elol
= €567/ = %0°0 %0°00T %0 €56VL €S6'VL mucmEmum_amm 191N
620°T 09T°¢ST - %L°0 %€ 66 %0 63T'¥ST 68TVST daud g aseyaund Auadoud
LO0T S | €68'ST = S %L°0 %E 66 %0 000°9T S | 00091 S SPIYSA

si3wo3isn)
aining

slawoisn)
Sunsig

sishjeuy
woJ} 3pnjax3

siawoisn)
ining

($) siseq 150D jo uonnquisig

v 1I9IHX3

LuoneI3pIsu0)

slawoisn)
Sunsix3

sishjeuy
WwioJ} 3pnjax3

.(s4eqjoq)
Jjewiysy
350D JU3.IN)

1oy siseg
150) wawdojanag
waisAs

juawdinb3 / Ajijoey

uonleO||Y %

SHIOLSNI FANLNS ANV DNILSIXT OL1 S13SSV AINNV1d 40 NOLLVIOTIV - £ @l9el

(1uswdojanag waisAs) uoilesapisuo) Joj Juawdinb3 pue sailijde4 |ende) pauue|d 1918\
sisAjeuy 281ey) Ajdede) Jajepp
1J141S1a ¥31VM NOZVavd



9l Jo £ abed

S 1191HX3

9152'9/9°008 | wod AoBsqu-mmm
S9N Aq paredaid

*s39sse pauue|d 03 paie[adJ [IB12P 404 S 1qIYyX] 03 1943y "€
*s312s5e SUlSIXD 4O [1213p JOJ € pUB 7 SHOIYXJ 031 1343y T
*suo|323foad yimous 104 (soiydesSowaq) T UGIYX3 01 942y T

VIt S| zeo’s S

(uoisuedx3)
(uajeainb3
1333N/$)
adiey)
Rede)
winwixep]

(u1 Ang)
(auajeainb3
1213N/$)
a8ieyd
Apede)
winwixepl

0t

syun
juajeninby
1919
[euonippy
pauue|d

SETT

Jun Weanb3 J1a N J21BAN J2d

$ [veeos S a8iey) Anoede) wnwixely

(uoisuedx3) (uj Ang)
siseqg 350D siseg 150)

waysAs waisAs

984ey) Ajdede) jo Atewwing

paisnipy paisnipy

LINN LNFTYAINDI ¥313N ¥3d IDYVHDI ALIDVAVYD YI1VM 40 LNIINJO13AIA - 6 3]qel

asiey) Apede) |ejo)

1319w Yaul-g/s 194 ad1ey) Ajpede) Jaiep winwixey

$ [logr'D) $ siseg 1507 03 SUaWISNIPY :|e30]
= (0o0g"9) $13s ainin{ 01 pajedo|y (jeddulld) 3gaQ wua|-8uoT Suipuelsing
- S | 698°¢ S SOAISS3Y YseD
:51Spg 3500 0} spuawIsnipy
SET'T S | #5928 S 51500 W3ISAS a4nind g Suiisixy :|eiol
GETT - (uorsuedx3 wajshs aininyg
- S| ¥S9C8 $ Lul-Ang wayshs Bunsix3

51913\ 1U3|eAInb3 suc_&\‘mxw\m u1 aseaJou|

juawdojanaqg ainin4 03 pa1edo||y SaN|eA 1255y WaisAs

LNITVAIND3I ¥3LIN HONI-8/S V 404 IDYVHI ALIDVdVI WNIWIXVIN FHL 40 INIINJOTIAIC - 8 3l9el

uoienaje) 3s0) Hufn
sisAjeuy a81ey) Aydede) Ja1epn
1IIY1SIa Y31V NOZVavd



9l 40 g abed 91529297008 | woo noBsqu mmm
SEN Aq paledald

'sJ939W ,ZT Yydnoayl 0T 404 || SSB|D [uigan] pue ‘.8 ySnoJyl £ 404 | sse|d punodwo)
‘2 Yy3nouyy ,8/S 104 SiS1SW JUSWSIE|ASIP SSWNSSY “Z-g 3/G0L ‘TN VMMV :924n0S °T

0T0‘9ST‘TS L800€S €T6'STT TS 770'8% 00°59¢ 00€'s You| ZT
¥6L°90v$ LL9'SS 8TTTOVS 720'8S 00°0S 0001 you| 9
L6E°€0TS 8€8CS 655°002S 720'8s 00'S¢T 00S you| ¢
VLT'OETS LI8'TS 8GE‘8CTS 770'8S 00'9T 0zg you| €
£80°59% 8065 6LT79S 7208S 008 09T you| z
6£9°0VS$ 8955 TITorS 720'8% 00°'S 00T Wuig/tt
ove‘ozs 8T$ 950°0TS 770'8% 0S¢ 0S You| T
v0Z'e1S 0LTS 0TS 7708S 0S'T o€ yaul /¢
9€T‘8S vITS T20°8% 720'8% 00'T 0z yau ¥/€ X 8/s

SEYEINRER 1913\ 413d (wd3) mol4
T

. % S enby |72 433 3seg
1 1 SIEN
BN 13d (3s02 (3502 (au3jeninb3 Yaur-p/€ x8/s | snonunuo)

321G 4913
03 Aduajeainby WnWwixel A

agieyd juauodwo) juauodwo) J919N1/S)
Apede) |ejog uoisuedx3y) uj-Ang) 350D Hun
281ey) Adede) |asiey) Adede)

Jojoeq Aduajeninby

3Z1S Y4313 NO Q3sSvd I9UVYHI ALIDYdYI ¥ILVM - 0T @I9eL

281ey) wnwixey Jo UoIIE|N3|E) PUR UOIIeILJISSE|) 934 J31eM
sishjeuy agiey) Ardede) a1epy
9 119IHX3 1J141S1d ¥31VM NOZVEvD



91 Jo 6 ebeg

9152°9.9°008 | Woo" AoBsquimmm

SEN Aq pasedaid

MmN onmm

- -
- o

S NN NN NN MMM

- -
-

M M N MM S & T 0

w w www

(vonoyfut of)
Ao3ane)
1955y

Y 1IgIHX3

8T
243
¥5L
S6T'S
YEP'T
6€S
796'T
9t8
0T
6€8
8€8
L20'T
8TL
0vs
€08°L
L7279
USs'y
6£9LT
6L1TT
LLV'T
9SE'6E
SEL'ET
SLE'T
629
89081
86LTE
T90'¥S
595°LT
YES'OT
76T
S08'9T
87511
168'70T
885'8¢E

60€
LYE
9£5°08
ST8T
599'SE

uonenaidag

pajejnuwinddy

991’9
620'ST
8687
89L'€E
£78'sT
8vs'L
L9T°TT
9re's
£58°¢€
S58'Y
88Ty
Sig's
0ZE'E
090
£1878
S6%°89
£20°ST
TEE'0ET
78L'68
ST
085'69
BEYFEL
£96'L
T06°E
8EE'06
€79'LST
PLEL
¥LT6T

0s

LI0Z 0g 3unfg
JO se anjep yoog

8TT
we
LLE
8657
LTTT
0Lz
6
0¥
¥0€
09g
SEE
09z

ove

120'€
64’
90€'T
VEG'Y
66E'E
00€

9L
LTS
TT€

15T

YI9'E
8veE'9
08’8
T

86
(0)

8TEL
3284

uonenaidag
Juaun)

LLE
8657
AN
02
0z0'T
ovt
90t
08y
€05
92T
6vt
00€
€8LY
9€L'E
997'¢
SELTT
08L8
LLT'T
¥60'ZE
09%'sT
£90'T
8Ly
ST
0s¥'92Z
185'st
¥6E'9T
PES'IT
vI8'T
S08'9T
825'TT
£L5'L6
StP'9€

9£5'08
ST8'T
98FEE

(910Z/0€/9)
uoenasdag
33eqg 03 34

659
0LE'ST
189S
£96'8¢€
LST'8T
£808
OETVT
7609
£95'%
S6E'S
S20's
0¥ TT
80
009
L19'06
TZL'VL
S65'6T
0T0'SYT
196'T0T
T0S'T
9€6'80T
PET'SST
LEE'S
0ES'y
S0v'80T
TrY'06T
€0TLT1
6€8'9%
PES'IT
796'T
S08'9T
8Z5'TT
044'60T
885'8E

0907
£VT'E
9€5'08
ST8'T
S99'SE

150)
38ssy |ewiSuQ

LT0T
LT0T
ST0T
ST0Z
ST0T
ST0T
ST0T
ST0T
S10¢
S10T
102
102
10T
ST0T
¥10¢
S10T
¥102
€10T
€10¢
1102
10T
102
€102
€10¢
10t
10T
010z
<00z
LB6T
LB6T
L66T
LB6T
€002
<00z

910¢
9102
500z
<00z
00T

ERITVELS
uj Jeaj

LTOZ/vT/E
LT0Z/82/T
STOZ/T/L
ST0Z/T/L
STOZ/T/L
STOZ/T/L
STOZ/TE/S
STOZ/TE/S
S102/8%/t
S102/82/T
¥LOZ/ST/ZT
¥T0Z/T/TT
¥T0Z/TE/0T
ST0Z/ST/€
¥102/1/2T
STOZ/T/T
$102/9/1
€£T0Z/0E/TT
£T0Z/0E/TT
110Z/1/8
T10Z/ST/Y
Z10Z/0E/9
€T0Z/1E/T
€T0Z/0E/¥
TT0e/1/L
T10Z/1€/S
010Z/82/T
7002/0€/9
L66T/ST/8
L66T/ST/8
L66T/ST/8
LB6T/ST/8
£€002/92/T
z00Z/ST/S

910Z/0€/6
910Z/0¢/6
5002/02/9
200Z/8/v
2002/L/9

2ea paJinbay

dxe3.g dINY 00S - Z II9M

Jleday JOION Z [3M

dwind /g Auagy 3]qISIBWGNS-}NeA puow|y
Add-}nep puow|y

INeA |043U0D-}NeA pUOW|Y

0OdHQ

h 32 vavOs lelsur) uonejuawaldw) A1lawslaL 54 I9M
Lied auimal pue aAjeA 335em J0J S|0J3IU0D ||BISUl - G (]9
A 1013u00 dwind [jam daaq “doys u1 3jing dARA $T/TZ/TT
[PAleA 323Yd 1od ||ny 8 - doys ul jing IAeA $TOZ/TT/TT
B unjeD Jad S¢ ([3M - NPOIN 3S|Nd YUM JIIBIN 3AE1D0
13 1nu pue joq (7) ‘@npow as|nd yum Ja1aw anepQ (1)
(s)1em 1oy ss03euLioy2) dwnd 9T-5 £ YQQ Sopuno ()
B Jajem [[am padieysip Joj [[em Suiuielal 3ing - S [|19M
$TOT qeyay dwng § ¥ s[@M

10T sieday |[am

P AJ1IN235 19338 ‘|lem AJINIIS AI0|g 339420 10} JSPPY
102 OdHA

+¥10Z OdHa

sueday am

siieday |lam

ainpniiselju]

sieday I9m

3nep puowy

IPPY - UCHI3UU02J31U| OdHA

U01193UU0IAU| OdHA

vavis

ded uo) A1) say uasusr

juawieal] Jalepn

uIsUI[ - SUNPNIIS

1UB|d 324N0S JBIBM

FELVETRETERTY

AJl[1DB4 J0JRIBUID) T [[9M

24 JOIRJAUID T |IPM

podii] ,05) ssauieH A1sjes
YieaL pue I3 aoyxyoeg

Japeoq 9§ OTE 3439q uyor
Jawweyoer o813

Z 113 nd Jojesauss Auaoiswg

uoduasaq 13ssy

Ayddns jo s2unos
Ajddng jo aaunog
Ajddns jo sounos
Aiddns jo a2unos
Ajddns jo s2unog
Alddns jo a2unog
Addns jo a21nos
Ajddng jo 32unog
Ajddns jo a0.unog
Ajddng jo sounog
Aiddns jo s24nog
Ajddns jo s2unog
Ajddng jo aaunos
Aiddns jo a2inos
Alddng jo aaunog
Ajddns jo 32inos
Ajddns jo aaunos
Alddng jo a3unog
Ajddns jo 32inos
Ajddns jo 32un0g
Alddns jo a24nog
Ajddng jo aaunog
Alddns jo a21nos
Alddng jo aainog
Ajddns jo 32un0s
Alddns jo @01nog
Ajddns jo s2unos
Ajddns jo s2unog
Ajddns jo s2unos
Ajddng j0 asunos
Ajddns jo a2unog
Aiddns jo aounos
Ajddng jo aounos
Ajddns jo 32unos

wawdinb3 g sjooL
awdinb3 % sjooL
juawdinb3 7y sjoo]
swdinb3 7g sjoo]
awdinb3 13 sjoo

adA ] 3assy

PE-SS
£€-SS
CESS
TE-SS
0€-SS
62-55
8C-SS
LTSS
9¢-SS
5285
55
€755
¢TSS
1TSS
0T-SS
61-SS
8I-SS
LT-SS
91-SS
S1-5S
Y1-SS
€T-SS
TT-sS
T1-SS
0T-SS
6-5S
85S
£=58
955
§-sS
)
£-SS
€55
158

S-aL
t-aL
€31
[4c1

J3quiny
jassy

LT0Z/0£/9 40 SB 53355y Paxiy

sishjeuy assey) Apede) se3em
12041510 H31¥M NOZvavd



gt jo 0} 9fed

91547929008 | Woo* AoBsquimmm

SEN £q pasedaid

€T
€T
£T
€T
€1

(uonolfur Jof)
Aio3aze)
3955y

¥ LIgIHX3

90T
955'T
SLL'8
1Z5'8T
86E'ET
S85°E
0r0‘s
666'FEL
9/L'6
00z's
EE6'TT
EPFT0E
S£5°0T
S59'6
TEV'ETT
76812
£6¥'S
809°6T
L16'V8
SST'8HT
L1072
o9rsT
9vS‘T
29eYSL'T
BI¥'T
BEETT

uonepasdag

paje|nwnay

9T
Te0'stT
0

Q

€L6'8VE
SHT'ST
€186
8¥8'0ET
£58'27

LT0Z ‘0 3unr
0 SE an|ep joog

SOT
S6S
€49
0zs
09
9s

09291
EVTT
L8Y
LSE9
18€°T

858'62T
96
8t

uonenasdag
3Ny

90T
ISH'T
081'8
8Y¥8'LT
8.8'72
SZs'e
¥86'y
666'VET
9.L'6
00zZ's
£E6'TT
781's8¢
TEY'6T
8916
SLO'LTT
TT0'9Z
£6¥'S
80961
LT16'v8
SST'8KT
L10'22
95T
9pvs'T
YOr'v29’c
£2ET
SS8'TT

(910z/0¢£/9)
uopepasdag

33eq 03 Y1

or
or
ST
ST
ST
ST
or

v

ot
or
or
or
oF
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
or
or

a4
1355y

9t0'T
LBT'Y
LBL'ET
12s'st
86E'ET
S8S'E
ov0's
666'¥ET
9LL'6
00z's
£E6'TT
9T#'059
0zL'sy
89%'61
08¢'vST
StT'SS
£61'S
809°6T
LI6'V8
SST'8KT
L1022
98’1
95T
LOE'VET'S
¥Z8'c
0SE'6T

3500
1255y |eu

6661
200z
<00z
<00z
T00Z
T00Z
T00Z
86T
000z
666T
000z
6661
666T
L66T
8661
L66T
L66T
L66T
L66T
L66T
L66T
L66T
£661
9661
66T

ERILVELS
ul Jeaj

666T/9T/TT
700Z/21/6
700Z/L/01
200z/L/E
T00Z/2Z/01
1002/12/6
1002Z/¥1/6
¥86T/0£/9
oooz/oz/TT
666T/ST/0T
000zZ/62/9
666T/1/T
666T/T/T
L66T/ST/8
8661/8Z/1
L661/52/8
L661/SZ/8
L661/S2/8
L66T/SZ/8
L661/52/8
L661/52/8
LB6T/2T/T1
L66T/8/7T
966T/0£/9
Z66T/8T/€
T66T/9T/CT

21eq pasinbay

(2) santen Aysaning
(euog) 1x3 de) 104 8
15 U3J2H - aun uley 8

NOAIFSIY DI O'T UIsUIr
auljadig Jaju| 1se3aYIIN0S
NEA puowy

Jnep saysedy

oll%]

W€ s3did

W2 2uljadid

auiadid uoiediu)
1523YIN0S [ ussuar
auyadid ajouIwas

SuuasuiBug uasuar

suipdid ajouiwas
D 01 s1uawisnipy
suar dinb3z Jsy10

UISUI[ SIAIBN

SU - SUIBLA JRIBAN

SyuUe] 13 SII0MI53Y

3r - dinb3 Suidwing

waisAg Auneln

W3ishs Aneln

A UoAUED pIBIIN
Hemals g Jadauy
auyjadid

uoi3diiasag 3assy

uonnquisiq g suetl
uoinqusiq 7 suely
uoINqUIsIq 13 SUell
uonnqulsiq g suety
uoNquUIsIQ g Suel|
uonnqulsiqg g suesL
uonRNquUIsIq g suely
uolINQUISIQ g SURl|
uonnqulsiq g suelL
uolNQUISI g Suel|
uonnquisiq 1g suel
uonpnqulsiqg g suell
uoingulsiq g suell
uoIINgLIsIq 1 SUel]
uonnguIsIq g sued|
uoingulsiq g suell
uopnqulsiqg g suell
uoNQUISIQ g Suel|
uolNguIsiq 7 sued)
uoINQUISIQ 7R SURIL
uolNgUIsIq g Suel|
uonnNguisIq g sued|
uolNgUISI g Suel|
uoinqulsiq g suedL
uoiNgUISIQ *g SURL|
uoiNquIsIq ’g sued)

adA] jassy

67-aL
87-aL
£LT-aL
9z-alL
sT-alL
tT-al
€C-aL
eal
Te-al
6T-aL
81-AL
L1-0L
9T-dlL
ST-al
-0l
€7-aL
T-al
0T-aL
8-alL
£-QL
S-aL
S-aL
v-al
€-aL
-alL

Jaqunyy
1355y

LTOZ/0E/9 30 se 51assy paxid

sishjeuy aZ1ey) Aydede) 1arepn
1JIY1S1a ¥31¥M NOZvavd



91 jo |1 afed

9152'9/9'008 | woa"noBsqummm

SEN Aq pasedaid

(uosofur iof)
Aio8azeny
BEL

V LIgIHX3

008'L£2
L0z
L0
09¢€
(11744
6L
778
L9%
L9%
€€L
747
£5¢
€67
0ze
oze
€67
765'F
L0
087's
42
1L212
0TS
69
Ak :d
9€8T
659'ST
00%
8E8'Y
#5096
£98'v6
ov8'LE

uonenasdsg

pa3e|nwnaoy

00Z'780T
06T
06%'T
0Z8't
09T’
18%°0T
£88°L
€EL'E
€EL'E
£97's
979's
LYT'T
£0TT
0851
085t
L0T°T
926'8E
£60T
0zZEVE
6Z€'E
£80'58
SET'TT
UE'T
889'TZ
86€'S
909'vZ
414
PEP' YT
LTE'EST
LSS'ETT
TILE

£10Z “0€ 3unr
40 se anjep joog

0ov'9y
£TT
£TT
433
ove
(374
08s
08t
08z
00t
L0¥
091
091
0zt
ozt
09T
1067

uonenaidag
uaun)

00 16T
6

6

8¢

002

we

€€T
769'T
LT
0v9'z
95z
T8T'YT
90y
£§S
9z1'9
L82'T
vLE'TT
8S€
95E'y
0ze'L8
20698
0£0°SE

(9t0z/0£/9)
audag
ajeq o1 3y

0s
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
St
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
14
ST
or
o
or
ST

am
33557

000'0ZE'C
869'T
869'T
086'v
009t
0EZ'TT
S0L'8
00z'vy
00zZ'y
0009
001'9
002
0or'e
008'T
008'T
o0ot'z
0ZS'sv
00v'z
009'6€
TV8'E
¥SE‘90T
OFE'LT
9907
00862
vET'S
S9T'0F
2€9
L't
T8E'6VE
foraa:144
1851

150)
3955y |euidLQ

10t
ST0T
ST0T
910¢
S10¢
9102
910¢
S10T
ST0Z
S10T
9102
ST0T
ST0T
S102
ST0Z
ST0T
ST0T
ST0T
S10T
¥T0Z
€T0T
1Tz
TT0?
€T0T
010z
010z
£00T
£00T
900¢
5007
£00T

2135
ul Jeaj

Z10z/51/8
S10T/02/8
S102/0Z/8
9T0Z/9/9
ST0Z/11/6
9102/0Z/9
910Z/2/t
STOZ/E/TT
STOZ/E/TT
S10Z/02/8
910z/5/S
ST0Z/S/T1
S102/02/8
S102/07/8
sT0Z/0Z/8
STO0Z/6T/8
ST0Z/€2/1T
STO0Z/0T/8
ST0Z/1/9
¥T0Z/TE/8
€10Z/ST/TT
1102/51/C1
110Z/1/9
£102/TE/S
0T0Z/5¢/€
otoZ/t/e
£00Z/1E/8
£00Z/81/9
900Z/0€/9
S002/TE/L
€007/TE/CT

21ed pasinboy

w31sAs OdHA

Juawade|day J919IN S107 607ZS
1uaWade|day 318l 107 80ZZS
1uawade|day JIBN BYdUR|g 60EEY B S6Z6Y
9IAISS MIN W3 BTTST

wawae|day Js18N Aempeolg TTOFT
U9WadR|daY JURIPAH 3|OUIWSS 0TE0S
juawade|day Ja1aN ezuelads] ££775
wawsade|day 4919 ezuelads3 QOzTS

l[215u] J2131Al ezuelads3 §S6TS

le3su| 133N J3|Ind v686t

Juswade|day Ja13N 1S aneloN vOS8Y
uawade|day 419N IS win|d 9SZST '8 89ZST
juawade|day 13I8 IS Wnjd 9ETIST
uawae|day 4218 1S Wn|d OFTST
Juawaoe|day Ja13|N Aempeoig 996+T
323G UIBIA 0E00S-08661

awade|day Ja1ay Aempeoig prEHT

ho - Buiieodal Jouaiul (uojjed uoljjiw 57) €4 Jue] "IS W3
1013U02 Z jueL HTOZ ‘TZ ISNSNY HT-HT8 1BPIQ 3DIAISS
vavds

uswysigqiniay ep|

SpuUOYI0dAH

jUe] Ijouiwag jeo)

113\ UOSUS[ IO} 3A[BA IpNIYY

elluog pue ayzedy

uonnquasig

s{|am Joj [aued |ea33|3

auljadid s||IH Hasag

sulpdid €121 35

spaloid vd

uoi3duasaq 3assy

uonNquUIsIQ *g Sued|
uonnqLisiqg g sueldp
uoiINgLISI g suel)
uoIINgLISIQ 7 SUBJ]
uoRNQLAsIQ g SUBIL
uoIINqUISIq g Suel]
uenNquIsIq g Suel)
uoINGLISIC g SURLL
uoIINQUIsI 7 Suel|
uonnqusig g suedl
uonnquIsiq g suell
uoIINquIsIq 13 SURL]
uonNquUIsSIq g SUel)
uonnguIsIqg g suell
uoINgUISIq 7@ SUel|
uoiNqUIsSI P SURL]
uoIINqUIsIg g Suel|
uoINGUISIQ P SURL]
uonNgLIsIq 'g suel
uoIINGUISIg g SUel]
uonNGUISIQ 7 SueLL
uolINguIsIq g Sued|
uonNquIsiq g sue.l
uonNquIsIq 7y suedl
uonnqusig /g suedl
uoRINQLISIQ 73 suel|
uonNqLIsIQ 7B suesL
uonRNQLISIQ ¥ suel|
uonNqLIsIQ 73 sued|
uonnqusig g suedl
uornNqUIsIq g sued|

adAj jassy

09-aL
65-aL
85-Al
£5-Q1L
95-aL
§5-al
¥5-al
€5-aL
s-al
15-aL
0s-alL
6¥-aL
8y-alL
LAl
St-alL
St-aL
ri-al
£r-al
r-alL
Tr-alL
0-alL
6€-0L
8¢-al
LE-AL
9g-al
SE-aL
ve-alL
£E-aL
e-aL
Te-aL

LT0Z/0E/9 40 Se 53355y paxig

sishjeuy a31ey) Ayoede) Jazep
1J141S1a Y3LYM NOZvavd



gl jo | ebeg

959'620'5%

£6£669°25

026:82E%

Ip'9sL00LvS

YS0'62LTLS

9152929008 |

Wwoo* AoBSqU MM
s8N Aq pasedaid

W W Wwwww

- -

W WwWwwwwwwwuwwww

<

N NN

(uonojfur Jof)
Aio3aien
1985y

Y LISIHX3

8LE'C
¥0v'6C
29t's
008z
9IT'0E
786'TT

SSL'E
LTt

09T
SLE
sz§
£25'T
6T
0zt
1L
199
BLE'T
STSE
80T
655'6
0TL'vT

€18°E

99T
0€S
955
T6L'T
85T

uonepasdag
pajejnuwinady

000087
L8100
£89°8T
005°ZT
000TT
000t
00Z'T
S9E'TT
009°09
PSTPT
00002
T8
T85°9¢

YLYET

44

98T'T
T6%'C
£88'¢
582°T
88T
£16'Y
9871
8L

186t

£61'T
S6LT
6T
968

LZS'T

LT0Z ‘0 aunr
J0 se anjep joog

BLET

LL0'T

60T

091
SLE
SZs
29L
196
98LT
98t
86T
558

09T

991
SsT
L9T
64T
8L

uonenaidag
juaun)

vOv'62
S80'Y
009'C
9TT'0E
756'7

9t9'e
Le'L

T9L
196
£ETT
(744

£28'T
SZS'E
7807
6556
0TL'vT

£50'C

SLE
68€
£19'T
$0S'T

(910Z/0£/9)
uonenaidag
s3eq 03 3y

nww;mw;mw;mun

wn
—

Lo a s T o0 I 4 o T o T T ¥ T V0 TV T S o T

0t
ST
ST
ST
014

Jassy

000082
L8T'002
£89'8T
00S'CT
000'TT
000t
00Z'T
S9£'7C
009°09
PSTYT
000'0Z
vLT'8
185'9€

758'sT
062
SBE'S
009z
9TT'0E
756'7

SSL'E
LLT'L

9vE'T
9987
80v'y
808t
08’y
7E6'8
000'C
68E'T
6LE'T
STS'E
7807
655’6
0TL'vZ

008'8

659'T
STE'T
005'T
8897

601°E

150

1355y |_UIELO

10t
+00¢
L66T
9661
S66T
S66T
S66T
S66T
66T
66T
66T
6961
86T

910T
0102
[41114
£00T
6002
100T

LB6T
L66T

S10T
910Z
9102
ST0Z
ST0C
ST0T
ST0T
102
102
6002
600T
0102
S00T

ST0C

9102
102
102
£002
L66T

ERITVES
ul Jeaj

Z102/S1/5
¥00Z/T€/01
L6BT/S/T
966T/0€/9
S66T/0E/9
S66T/0E/9
S66T/0E/9
S66T/0E/9
v66T/0E/9
v66T/0E/9
T66T/TE/TT
6961/97/TT
v86T/0E/9

9102/0¢/6
010Z/ve/v
T10Z/1€/8
£00z/g/0T
6002/0¢/€
1002/52/6

LB6T/ST/8
L66T/5T/8

ST0Z/TE/8
9T0Z/TE/L
910Z/1E/8
S102/1/L
STOT/T/L
ST0Z/T/E
STOZ/1/T
v10Z/S/E
¥T0Z/ST/T
6002/9/L
600Z/€/1T
0T0z/ST/S
S00Z/0E/t

STOZ/ET/v

9T0Z/€2/9
¥T0Z/1Z/T
¥T0Z/¥2/T
£00Z/€/0T
L661/2/T

2ea pasinboy

0OdHQ - pue

1S w3 - puel

uasuar puejf

|I2AA 818J2U0)) LING - pue]
dwi jeude] - puel

dwi [ende) - pueq

Jdwy J31epN - pUET]
isogndie]-pue

Jdwy Ja1epn - pue

Jdwy J33BpN - pUET

pueq

pueq

1nbay JMD puel

1) Suipeay J31AN E153l PIOS 9TOT
3oNJL 3IIAIBS BIPUNL

0M3 -513A02 [|0Y

¥onJL uo pu3 Jeay

eJpunt 600T

AInd] elIRIiS NS 0002

siydiy Ja1em 131 (93 uasuar
Jueld 3|qiSueiy)

Liajuo) |lews o) Suljge) pue waisAs 10193014 SSI|AIIM
3U0Yd 3IUIIBJU0D) WOIA|0d

(35 puow|y /T SE6YT) Walshs Alnaas uoisniiu

W p1023J) Suljqed pue SeJawed }J0Mlau Z Wooy pieog
Jopafoid wooy pieog

sizndwo) manN

1appeT jooy

BzZU3paI)

sadueyd D24 - soipey

s1auiged 3uljy jooidasy Jnoy

19urged Suly joosdasy

sjooqysnol g

Sulig 918 - 9pesSdn auiemyos

jue] UOIINQLISIJ SULOYD

Aempeig 8T94T @ 3|0d Jel4
>m>__CoOn_ Wooy [Juaiajuo)
ajen

Jauleuo) a8e1035 3[IqOIN
Jun a8=i015

uonduasaqg 3assy

pue
puel
puel
puel
puel
puel
pue
puel
puel
puel
puel
puel
puel

S3pIYAA
sajIyan
S3PIYAA
sapIyAA
S3PIYAA
S3PIYIA

s3a|qidueiu]
sa|qiduelu|

dinb3 1g wing 3040
dinb3 73 uing4 AYWO
dinb3 % wing 3310
dinb3 ' wing 33140
dinb3 g uing MYWO
dinb3 %® uing 32O
dinb3 g uing adWQ
dinb3 %3 uing 30O
dinb3 g uing YO
dinb3 73 uing DYWO
dinb3 % uingd YO
dinb3 'g wng 3030
dinb3 % uing YO

Ajddns jo aaunos

saunpnis 18 sduipjing
$94n12nJ35 73 s3uip|ing
$3.4n1anu3S g s3uip|ing
sa.n3anu3s g sSuip|ing
$24n3Inu3s g s3uip|ing

adA] 1assy

EI-¥1
v
v
0T-v1
6-Y1
8-v1
Y1
-1
V1
lad!
€Y1
TVl
Vi

9-3A
S-3N
3A
€3A
3N
T-3A

NI
T-NI

€T-40
TT-40
TT-40
0T-40
640
8-40
£-40
9-40
$-40
t-40
€40
=40
1-40

T-1M

5-ad
58
€58
758
1-58

Jaquinn
j9ssy

LT0Z/0£/39 40 Se SI3s5Y paxid

sishjeuy agiey) A

sede) JaieM

12141510 §3L¥YM NOZVEvD



9l jog| ebey

915.°9/9°008 | Woo' roBsqu mmm

SaN Aq paredaid

34
00T
LE
SST
61T
LS
6
ot
9t
TE
€€
EL
T4
TC
9t9

60T
9.6
[4AS]

675
£20'T
09

6
€29
880'T
9€9
SEE

LERITSETS
aumng

() siseg 3507 4o uonnquasia (%) siseg uoeIO| Y

Y LIgIHX3

€T¥'9
8T6'YT
L6V'S
€06'LE
09L°LT
Y8
LS9'ET
888'S
806°E
1297
798'v
98801
SS8°E
86T'E
$ST'96
VLS'TL
95T°9T
SPE'SPT
SZT'00T
62
L8L'8L
L6ZTST
0888
0SE'Y
11876
196'T9T
VEL'YE
L08'6Y

66

5321035
Sunsixg

%L9°0
%£9°0
%L9'0
%L9°0
%£9°0
%L9'0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9'0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0

%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%£9°0
%L9'0

LERITYEN
aumng

%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE66
%EE 66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE 66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE 66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE 66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE 66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE 66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE 66
%EE'66
%EE 66

%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE66
%EE'66
%EE'66

5321MI35
Sunsixg

99%'9
620'ST
PES'S
LST'8E
6L8'LT
6258
8hL'ET
8Z6'S
SE6'E
759t
568
656'0T
088'€
6TT'E
008'96
+S0'ZL
597’91
TZE'9YT
86£'00T
67
9TE'6L
0Ze'esT
0v6'8
BLE'Y
SEY'E6
8¥0'€91T
0LE'S6
ZHT'0S

66

107’6

T6L'T
T96'C

(0)

s|seg 3500
ul-Ang
wajshs

8T
e
158
0.8's
18L°T
609
L1277
956
144
£58
6.6
69€°C
6£8
895
1ZT6
0§59
056t
8¥8'6T
€L9'ET
BILT
£98'tY
95022
EPS'T
90L
£89'ST
ET6'EE
T6¥°0L
S80°0€
528t

860702

91t
SSE

895TL

paienwinaay

65’9
0LE'ST
98€'9
L20'vF
0£9'0Z
2€T'6
996'ST
¥88'9
099y
605'S
vL8'S
8ze'eT
6IL'Y
L8L°E
T76'S0T
509'8L
STT'TT
041991
0LF'FTT
8YL'T
6LT'VET
9.£°08T
£8%°0T
980°S
f44 5439
TL6'96T
T98'S9T
L7208
¥Z6'E

86¥' 11T

L01°C
LTEE

895'TL

350 1355y

%00T
%001
%ETT
%ETT
%ETT
%ETT
%ETT
%ETT
%C0T
%C0T
%LTT
%LTT
%LTT
%S0T
%LIT
%S0T
%80T
%CTT
%CTT
%9TT
%PTT
%PTT
%eTT
%eTT
%E0T
%E0T
%0ET
%TLT
anjep Suiuieway o

anjep Suluiewsy oy

%E6T
anjep Juluieway oN

%0t
%C0T
anjep Suluieway ON

anjep jewsuo
340 % paisnipy

anjep uoizedn|day

J3yeald dINY 005 - Z [1I3M

Jieday JOJOIN T 19,

dwnd £87 Auaqy| 3|qIsiawWgns-ynea puowy
Add-}neA puowly

ANBA [0J3U0D-}NBA PUOW|Y

0dHa

1e YavIs ||elsut) uonejuaws|dw AJ31aWwajaL S [3Mm
led 341MaJ PUB SA[BA 31SBM J0J S|0J3U0D [[RISUL - S# [I3M
A josu02 dwnd [jam daaq “doys ul 3|ing 3A|_A HT/TZ/TT
BAleA 323y2 1iod [ny | 8 - doys ut Jing aneA FTOZ/TT/TT
B ulAled 12d G# ||3M - INPOIA BS|Nd YUM J213|A 3ABID0
I3 Inu pue 3oq (z) ‘@npow asind yim Js1sw anePQ (1)
(s118m 404 s103eunioyd) dwnd 9T-§ £ vaq so3punio (z)
e Jalem ||am padieysip oy |jem Suiuielal 1ing - §# [[9M
$TOT qeyay dwind § ¥ s|i3Mm

10T saeday (|am

p AJ1N23s [39315 ‘[|lem A11INJ3S 3J0]g 919JIUC) IO} JSPPY
+10Z OdHA

+10Z OdHA

sueday oM

sieday I3

aInnIseu|

sieday [l

Hnep puowy

|PRY - UCII3UU02I3IU| OdHA

uoIIBUU0IIIU] OdHA

vavos

de) juo) A1) sey ussuar

JUSWIRAI] IR

uasuar - saINPNAIS

1UB|d 324N0S JIIBM

[IENTETRTERS

Ajl[1DB4 JO1RIBUID T [[9M

Ajjioe4 J01RISUIY 7 |9

podu] ,05) ssauwiey Alajes
YiaaL pue N33 aoyxydeg
J2peo] BS OTE 3J99Q uyor
Jawweyyoer 0813

Z 113 nd Joiesauas Ausdiawg

uonduasag 13ssy

Aiddns jo s24nos
Ajddns jo s24nosg
Ajddng jo aaunos
Aiddns jo 324nos
Ajddns jo s2nos
Addng jo aaunog
Ajddns jo 321nos
Ajddns jo aaunog
Ajddns jo a2inos
Ajddns jo 32inos
Ajddng jo aainog
Ajddns jo s2unog
Addns jo aainog
Ajddns jo aoinog
Ajddns jo a2unog
Alddns jo 22inog
Ajddns jo 32inos
Ajddns jo 92unog
Alddns jo 224nog
Ajddns jo 324n0s
Ajddns jo 92inog
Ajddns jo 321nos
Ajddng jo a2unog
A|ddns jo @2in0g
Ajddns jo 324nos
Ajddng 30 a2unog
Ajddnsg jo adinog
Ajddns jo 32unos
Ajddns jo 30unos
Ajddnsg jo aaunog
Ajddns jo a2unos
Ajddns jo a0unog
Ajddns jo 32unos
Ajddns o 302unog

juawdinb3 7g sjoo
juawdinb3 g sjo0L
juawdinb3 7 sjo0L
1uawdinb3 73 sjooL
wawdinb3 g sjooL

3dA ] 33ssy

YE-SS
£E-55
CE-SS
TE-SS
0€-SS
62-SS
8C-SS
LT-SS
92755
ST-SS
te-SS
€C-SS
Te-ss
TT-55
0Z-sS
61-SS
81-5S
LT85
91-SS
S1-SS
Y1-SS
ET-SS
TI-55
T1-SS
0T-SS
655
8-5S
L-SS
9-sS
555
7SS
€SS
-SS
1-5S

S-aL
3L
€31
AL

Jagquinp
FELL]

LT0Z/0E/9 j0 se s1assy paxiy

sishjeuy adiey) Ayoede) Jazepy
1J141S1d ¥31LYM NOZvavd



91 jo y| efieg

915479/8°008 | Woo' AoBsqummm

SEN Aq patedaid

- 2 %90 | %eEe6 | - = = anjep Sululeway oN (z) sanjep Ayanng|  uonnqguisiq g sued) 62-01
9€ Z0€'s %L9'0 | %EEB6 | BEE'S SHT'E £81'8 %20T (enuog) 3 dey 304 8| uounquisiqg g sues) 87-al
€02 6ST'0E %L9'0 | %EE'66 | TIE0E 9€L/T 860'8Y %z02T 1S U3J3H - 3ur uley 8| UOINQuISIQ 1§ Sued] Lz-aL
= = %L90 | %EEE6 | - 08T 708'ZS %582 JI0AJ3SIY DN 0'T USSUS[|  UORNQLISIQ 7§ SUBIL 9z7-al
“ = %L9'0 | %EEE6 |- v6L6Y v6L'60 %ETT suiadid 431l 15e3YIN0S|  UONNALISIQ g SuRIL Sz-al
- - %L90 | %EEE6 | - 2 2 anjep Suiuieway oN }nep puow|y| uoBRNQLISIQ g Suedl ¥Z-aL
- T %L90 | %EEE6 | - = = anje Sujuleway oN 1nep aydedy|  uonnqgLIsIg g SueJL £Z-aL
& = %L9'0 | %EE'66 | - = = anjep Sululeway oN uonnqguIsIQ g suell zz-aL
= & %L9°0 | %EE66 | - = = anjep Suiuleway oN uonNquIsig 7§ suelt T2-aL
= = %L9'0 | %EEE6 | - = = anjep Sululeway oN uenNquIsig g suedy 6T-AL
= & %L9'0 | %EE'66 | - # = anjeA Juiuleway oN aujadig uonesil)|  uonnquIsiq g suelL 8T-aL
S8T'S oereLL %L9°0 | %EE'66 | SOE'LLL SEVTLY OvL'8vr'T %ETT 1583YIN0S / U3sU3f|  UoIINGUISIQ g SUBJL L1-aL
YLE $€9'SS %L9'0 | %EE'66 | 800'9S 678'sY LER'TOT %ETT auladid ajoulwasg|  uonNQuUIsIq g SuelL 91-aL
18T 66472 %L9'0 | %EE'66 | 059'TT S82'Te SE6'TY %IET Suusauiduz uasuar| uonnquisig 1y suely ST-aL
9081 £98'89¢ %L9°0 | %EE'66 | 899'0LT 87€'SST 966'SZS %L0T auladid ajounuas|  uolNquisiq g SuelL +¥1-aL
gy TEV'E9 %L9'0 | %EE66 | £58'€9 66179 959'9Z1T %6CT Joysiuswisnipy| uonnquisiqg iy suell €1-aL
- - %L9°0 | %EE66 | - £€65TT £65°7T %677 suar dinbg Jeyap| uonnquisiqg 1g suely IT-aL
= = %90 | %EE66 | - TTZ'oP TIT0r %502 USSUS[ SIBI3N|  UoNINQUISIQ B SuBJ) o1-aL
- - %90 | %EE66 | - #98'88T 798881 %TTT SUS[ - SUIBIA J31BM |  UOIINGLISIQ 7 SUBL 8-aL
= - %L90 | %EE66 | - Z ? anjep Suiuieway oN SYUBL P SU0AIISIY| UOINGUISI] 7P SUBJL -aL
& 2 %L9°0 | %EEE6 | - 896'8Y 8968% %TLT 3r-dinb3 Suidwng| uonnguIsiq ¥ suedy 9-aL
= o %L9°0 | %EE66 | - 895t 895°¢€ %IET wajshs Anen|  uonnguisiq g suedL s-al
. = %L9°0 | %EE'66 | - 895'E 895 %IET WalsAs Alneig|  UoIINGLISIQ g SURIL #-aL
20S'8E 866'7EL'S %L9°0 | %EE66 | TOSTLLS ¥TLYIS'9 STT'98TTT %LET M uoAue) piBllIN|  UOIINGUISIQ 7 SUBJL €-aL
¥Z p5'e %L9°0 | %EE'66 | 895'E 8€T'9 90L6 %ST UeM3]S g 333y |  uoiINguIsIq g suedL -aL
6TT LELLT %L9°0 | %EE'66 | 958LT [44- 4% 8LT'6Y %SST aulpdid| uorNguIsIq g Suedl

SIINIIS uonenaidag

paiejnwndy

anjep [euiduig
40 % paisnipy

saouas [ 533G | SMAIAS | giseg 507

507 3355
aimng Junigsing ainmng | Sunsixg 9 ARy
ul-Ang

Jaquiny

adA] 3355
1 1955y 1955y

uonduasag 319ssy

335A
s anjep uoneddsy

() siseq 350) jo uoninqusiq |[(94) siseg uo1IE20||Y

£10Z/0€/9 30 S 53355y Paxid

sishjeuy asiey) Apede) Jazepm

vV LIgIHX3 LO141S10 ¥3LVYM NOZvavD



gl jo 5| ebeg

9152°9.5'008 | Woo" Aofisqumwm

SEN Aq pasedalg

L08bT
o1
0T
1€
1T
oL
€5
T4
14
SE
8€
¥T
¥T
T
1T
¥T
9.7
¥T
T+
9z
0L
41
€T
S9T
9t
1474
z
191
68L°C
8€9'C
0s

SIIAIDS
a1nmng

TrL'¥02'2
S6Y'T
S6P'T
109t
0LT'E
LEVOT
LT6°L
avL'e
IrL'E
¥8Z°S
T09's
PSTT
PIT'Z
S8S'T
S8s'T
$IT'C
£80°TY
001z
£98'SE
598'€
PPE'SOT
68991
988'T
6257
9689
SEFTE
79t
81072
8TTSTY
87Lz6E
0S¥'L

S0INIBS
Suysixg

($) siseg 150D jo uonNqLls

¥ LIgIHX3

%L9'0 | HEE'66
%L9°0 | %EE'66
%L9'0 | %EE'66
%L9'0 | %EE'66
%L9°0 | %EE'66
%LY'0 | %EE'66
%L9'0 | %EE'66
%L9°0 | %EE'66
%L9'0 | %EE'66
%L9°0 | %EE'66
%L9'0 | %EE'66
%L9°0 | %EE'66
%L9'0 | %EE'66
%L9'0 | %EE'66
%L9'0 | %EE66
%L9°0 | %EE'G6
%L8'0 | %EE'66
%L9°0 | %EE'66
%L90 | %EE'66
%L3°0 | %EE'66
%L9°0 | %EE66
%L90 | %EE66
%L9°0 | %EE'66
%L9°0 | %EEBE
%L9°0 | %EE'6E
%L90 | %EEBE
%L90 | %EE'66
%L9°0 | %EEBE
%L90 | %EE'66
%L90 | %EE'66
%L9'0 | %EE'66

SADINJIBS | SAIIAIBS
2imng | Bupnsix3

(94) siseg uopelo|y

8YS'6TC'T
S0S'T
S0S'T
TE9'Y
Z6T'E
L0S'0T
0L6°L
TLL'E
TLLE
BIE'S
0v9'S
8917
871t
965'T
965T
871t
£9ETY
FITT
70T'9E
168°¢
750901
70891
668'T
¥69'%T
69
6v9'TE
¥9€
BLIFT
9T0'8TY
S9ES6E
005'L

siseg 150D
ul-Ang
wiaysis

98Y'EST
012
012
19€
a2
182
1€8
LY
Ly

i3 74
9Ly
95z
96¢
(444
(444
962
188
oTE
$S5's
665
£15'9Z
T0Z'L
196
LET'6
8yo'e
orT'oz
629
S0T'8
005'8ST
994491
T8Y'9L
uonenaidag
pale|nuinaoy

PEQ'ELY'T
PIL'T
YILT
2667
9g9°c
8ST'TT
2088
W'y
we'y
0909
STT'9
74 44
4
8187
8181
vIP'T
ety
7444
8591
06%'%
S9STET
200t
098'C
0E6'EE
065'0T
68L'TS
66
v8TTE
915948
TET'E9S
186'€8

anjep jeuiduQ
40 % paisnipy

150] 1955y

anjep uonedlday

%L0T
%T0T
%T0T
%001
%T0T
%001
%T0T
%T0T
%T10T
%10T
%001
%10T
%10T
%10T
%10T
%10T
%30T
%101
%501
%LTT
%SIT
%BET
%BET
%YTT
%6CT
%6CT
%LST
%891
%S9T
%LLT

WaisAS OdHA

wawsde|day J913IA 5107 60275
juawade|day Ja1a 5107 80225
1uzwaoe|day 918N IYoue|g 60E6Y '3 S6T6Y
30IAIBS MIN W3 STTST

wswaoe|day 45131 Aempeolg TTOVT
Juswaoe|day JueipAH 3|OUIWAS OTE0S
juawade|day 4313y ezURIDdS] £/77S
uswsse|day 919N ezuesads3 00ZZS

J|e1su| 4313 ezuRIRdS] §SETS

[1B3SU| 43181 43| |N4 Y6861

wawaoe|day 318N 1S 3AelON HOSBY
uawade|day J313I IS Wn|d 95ZST B 89ZST
1uzwade|day 318N IS Wn|d 9ETIST
1uawae|day J3I9W IS wnid OFIST
wawaoe|day Ja13y Aempeoig 9964T
J21AI35 UIBINI 0E00S-08661

wawadeday J1BN Aempeoig r6YT

o - Suizeodau Jouaul (uoj|es uoljiw §°) £ uel 1S w3
[0J43U0D T YUBL HTOZ ‘T ISNENY (HT-FT8 HIPJIO 3RS
Yavas

U3WYsIqInyay ep|

3Ipuojya0dAH

Jue] 3|oulWas 180

113\ UOSUI[ 104 3A|BA IPNUNY

eljuog pue aydedy

uonnquasig

s||am Joy |aued [eoua|3

aul|adid s||IH Hesaq

sunadid €T4T 38

spafo.d v4

uonduasaqg 33ssy

uoIINqLISI 7 Sued]
uoIINQLISIQ 73 SUBJY
uoIINQUISI] 73 SURLY
uoIINqLISIQ 73 SURJL
uoINQUISI 73 SUBSL
uoIINGUISI 7 SUel|
uoRNguIsIQ 7 SUBJ]
uolNqUISI] 13 SuRl]
uoIINqUIsSIq 7g SUBJL
uonNQLIsIQ g SUBIL
uoIINqUISIQ 1 Suel|
uoINGUISIQ 7B SUBJL
uonnguIsIy g suel|
uoINquUIsIg g SUel|
uonNqUIsIg g SUBJL
uonnguIsIq g suelt
uoNquUIsIq 'y sued)
uonngysiqg 7@ suetl
uonNguUIsiq 'g suesl
uoIINqGUIsIq g SUe]
uonNquIsiq g suedL
uoINQUISIQ 7g sued)
uonNquIsIQ 7B SUeJL
LoINGLISI 73 SUel]
uolNGLISIQ 7B SUBJL
uolNquUISIY 7§ Sued]
uonNquIsIQ 7B SUBJL
uonNquUISIQ 1§ sued]
uoINquIsIq *g SUeJ|
uonNqLISIQ 'g SUBL]
uonNqLIsIq 7 suesl

2dAj 3355y

09-aL
65-AL
85-QL
£5-QL
95-aL
SS-al
+S-aL
€5-al
¢s-dL
15-aL
05-aL
6¥-aL
8t-alL
Ly-AL
9t-alL
St-aL
ri-al
£-al
TraL
T-al
0-al
6€-aL
8¢-al
LE-0L
9e-al
SE-aL
ve-alL
g£e-aL
e-alL
Te-alL

Jaquiny
1955y

£10Z/0E/9 40 e 53355y paxig

sishjeuy @31ey) Aypede) Jazepm
12181510 ¥3LVM NOZVEvd



9l jo g| ebey

0LLZ0ECES

yZ86BETLS

0ZP Ibt6s

vhzIc81zs

sisLosg008 |

woa° AoBsquimmm
SN Aq pasedaig

898'T
SEE'T
a8
€8
€L
Vi

5149
0¥
6
EET
55
h2 74

6

L1
9t
91
0z
SE

SE

ot
€T
4"
ot

sadInIag
aimng

($) siseg 150D jo uonnquisiq |(%) siseg

¥ 1I8IHX3

TET'BLT
258'861
795'8T
LIPTT
LZ6'0T
£L6'E
76I'T
9TZ'7Z
96T'09
090'¢T
£98'61
6TT'8
LEE'9E

889°€T

¥9¢

S0TT
0€5'C
SY6'E
00t'e
8T0'€
19T's
TSET
88L

TTZ's

9z8'T
T€6'T
T60'C
60T
£E0°E

[ERIIVETS
Sunsix3

59

%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L8°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L£9°0
%L9°0
%L90

%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%.L9°0

%L9°0
%L9°0

%£9°0
%490
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9'0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0

%L9°0

%L9°0
%L8°0
%L9°0
%L9°0
%L9°0

135
aining

%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE 66
%EE'66
%EE66
%EE66
%EE'66

%EE'66
%EE66
%EE66
%EE66
EL'66
%EE'66

%EE 66
%EE 66

%EE66
%EE'66
%EE66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE 66
%EE'66

%EEE6

%EE'66
%EE'66
%EE 66
%EE'66
%EE'66

SIINNIAS
Bunsnag

000'08¢
£81°00Z
£89'8T
00S'2T
000°TT
000y
002'T
S9ETT
00908
STV
000°0Z
vLT'8
185'9¢

08L'ET

99¢

€12°T
LYS'T
TLE'E
9T¥'z
8r0'e
S6T'S
09€'T
v6L

9ve's

9€9'T
6T
S0T'T
T0ST

#S0°E

siseg 350)
uj-Ang
waysis

TEY'T

9€T’9

6Y9°LY

LOE9

78E
LES

119'T
80T
1S¢Y

Fadol 4

T
€45
109
200'e

PIT'E

uonepaldag
pajenwniy

000°08Z
£81°002
£89°8T
00sZT
000TT
000t
002’1
S9E'ZE
009°09
FSTPT
000°02
LTS
185'9€

TIT9T
109

6Y9'LY

L0E'9

LLE'T
TE€6'C
205y
£70'y
080's
9vb's
STTZ
SIST

L5T'6

04T
L18°T
L0L'T
€05t

812’9

1507 135Sy

%001
%001
%00T
%00T
%00T
%001
%00T
%00T
%00T
%001
%001
%00T
%001

%6TT

%89T
anjep Suluiewsy oN

%e0T

%20T

%Z0T

%90T

%90T

%90T

%90T

%60T
anjep Suiulewsay oN
anjep Suluieway oN
anjep Sululeway o
anjep Suluteway oy
anjea Suiuieway oN

%S0T

%EQT
%30T
%80T
%891
%00

anjep [ewduQ
30 % paisnipy

anjep uonedyjday

0dHQ - puel

IS W3- puej

u3asuar pue|r

[I9M 31910U0) LING - pue]
dwj jende) - pueq
dwi jeude) - pueq
Jdwy Ja1e - pueq
sopnjle]-pue]

Jdw) 338 - PUB]
Jdwy J33epp - pueq
puel

pueq

uolsINbay M) puel

Je) Suipeay 4313 elIsal4 plod 9T0T
}anJ] 301G BIpUN]

0M1 -5J3N00 [|oY

3oni] uo pug Jeay

BJpunj 6007

JanJL BRI JND 000T

s1ydy 491em 134 [e8a7 uasuar
ue|d 31qidueiul

Liayuod jjews 403 Bulige) pue walsAs 10303004 SS3[RIIM
JUOYJ SIUIBJU07) WOIAJOd

("15 puowy 7/T SE6YT) WeIsAS Alundas uoisnayul

W pJodal) Suljged pue Selalwed JIoMIau 7 Wwooy pieog
sop03loud wWooy pieog

siandwo) maN

Jappe7 jo0y

BZUBPAI)

sa8ueyD D24 - soipey

s19uiqged Suny joosdsay anoy

13uIqed Suy Joosdaul4

syooqysnol z

3ul|ig Ja1epn - 9pesddn asemyos

jUe] UoRNGLISIQ AULIOHY)

Aempe.g 8T9¥T @ 3[04 Jeld
Aemiooq Wwooy aJuaiazuo)
31en

J3uteluo) agelols 3|Iqon
uun s8es01s

pue]
puey
puel
pueq
puel
puel
pueq
puel
puel
puer
puen
puen
pueq

SIPIYIA
s34
saIyaA
LETRIITENY
SPIYIA
S3I2IYBA

sa|qiduelu|
sa|qiSuely)

dinb3 1 wing 2210
dinb3 7 wing so140
dinb3 1 uing 8210
dinb3 %@ wing 83y0
dinb3 13 uing 22O
dinb3 @ wing 320
dinb3 % uing 32140
dinb3 %@ uing DO
dinb3 g wung 2140
dinb3 @ uing 8240
dinb3 g uung4 3RO
dinb3 g uang 330
dinb3 vg wing 3340

Ajddng jo 92unog

$34nPnS 1 sdulp|ing
$34n1Inu3S g ssuip|ing
$34N19N135 @ s8uip|ing
$94n19n.3S g sSuipjing
$31n32n.135 73 sSuip|ing

adA] 1assy

£10Z/0g/9 40 5@

sishjeuy aSiey) Ay

ET-V1
v
v
0T-v1
6-v1
8-v1
LY
91
SV
el
V1
[l
Vi

9-IA
S-3A
#IA
€A
Z-3A
T-3A

TNI
T-NI

€1-40
<1-40
11-40
01-10
640
8-10
£-40
9-40
540
40
€40
40
T-40

T-1Mm

S-ag
S8
€58
758

Jaquny
3355y

$3955Y paxiy

sede) Jaiem

LOIY1SIa ¥3LYM NOZvavd



